
  CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Tuesday, October 1, 2013 

5:30 P.M. 
701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 

City Council Chambers 

 
5:30 P.M. CLOSED SESSION (1st floor Council Conference Room, Administration Building) 
 
Public Comment on these items will be taken prior to adjourning to Closed Session 
CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section §54957 to conference with labor 

negotiators regarding labor negotiations with the American Federation of State, County 
and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 

 
Attendees:  Alex McIntyre, City Manager, Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City 
Manager, Bill McClure, City Attorney, Gina Donnelly, Human Resources Director, and 
Charles Sakai, Labor Attorney 

 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION  
 
ROLL CALL – Carlton, Cline, Keith, Ohtaki, Mueller  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE to be led by the 4-H and presentation 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
A1. Presentation by Senator Jerry Hill regarding legislative updates on the State budget, 

education funding, High Speed Rail and other topics 
 
A2. Review Community Engagement Principles  
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 (Limited to 30 minutes) 

Under “Public Comment #1”, the public may address the Council on any subject not listed 
on the agenda and items listed under the Consent Calendar.  Each speaker may address 
the Council once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes.  Please clearly state 
your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.  The Council cannot act 
on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Council cannot respond to non-
agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general 
information. 

 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
D1.  Approve the City’s response to the Grand Jury report “San Mateo County Special Districts: 

Who is Really in Charge of the Taxpayers Money? The Mosquito District Embezzlement: 
Is it the Tip of the Iceberg?” and authorize the Mayor to sign and send the letter in 
response (Staff report #13-162) 

PAGE 1

tcliljedahl
Highlight



October 1, 2013 
Agenda Page 2 

  

 
D2. Accept minutes for the Council meeting of September 24, 2013 (Attachment) 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Approve the Request for Proposal for the El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration and 

Ravenswood Avenue Right Turn Lane Study (Staff report #13-163)  
 
F2. Consideration of the formation of a Small Business Commission (Staff report #13-164) 
 
F3. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item: None 
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None  
 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None 
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
I1. November 2013 Council Meeting schedule (Staff report #13-165) 
 
J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (Limited to 30 minutes) 

Under “Public Comment #2”, the public if unable to address the Council on non-agenda 
items during Public Comment #1, may do so at this time.  Each person is limited to three 
minutes.  Please clearly state your name and address or jurisdiction in which you live. 

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956.  Members of the public can view electronic 
agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at HHUUhttp://www.menlopark.orgUUHH  and can receive e-mail notification of agenda and staff 
report postings by subscribing to the “Home Delivery” service on the City’s homepage.  Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by 
contacting the City Clerk at (650) 330-6620.  Copies of the entire packet are available at the library for viewing and copying.  (Posted: 
09/26/2013)   
 

At every Regular Meeting of the City Council, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the right to address the 
City Council on the Consent Calendar and any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to 
directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during the Council’s 
consideration of the item.   
At every Special Meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item listed on 
the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during consideration of the item.  
 

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public record (subject to 
any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, Menlo Park City Hall, 701 Laurel 
Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.  Members of the public may send communications to members of the City 
Council via the City Council’s e-mail address at HUcity.council@menlopark.orgUH.  These communications are public records and can be viewed 
by any one by clicking on the following link: HUhttp://ccin.menlopark.orgUH   
 

City Council meetings are televised live on Government Access Television Cable TV Channel 26.  Meetings are re-broadcast on Channel 26 
on Thursdays and Saturdays at 11:00 a.m.  A DVD of each meeting is available for check out at the Menlo Park Library.  Live and archived 
video stream of Council meetings can be accessed at HHUUhttp://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2UUHHUU   
 
Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s 
Office at (650) 330-6620. 

PAGE 2

http://www.menlopark.org/
mailto:Ucity.council@menlopark.orgU
http://ccin.menlopark.org/
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2
tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-162 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-1 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Approve the City’s Response to the Grand Jury 

Report “San Mateo County Special Districts: Who 
is Really in Charge of the Taxpayer’s Money? The 
Mosquito District Embezzlement: Is it the Tip of 
the Iceberg?” and Authorize the Mayor to Sign 
and Send the Letter in Response 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that Council consider the attached response to the Grand Jury 
Report: “San Mateo County Special Districts: Who is Really in Charge of the Taxpayer’s 
Money? The Mosquito District Embezzlement: Is it the Tip of the Iceberg?” and 
authorize the Mayor to sign and send the letter in response included as Attachment B. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

San Mateo County has twenty-two (22) independent special districts, each being a 
distinct and legally separate entity from cities and the County, and they deliver special 
public services such as mosquito abatement, water management, recreational 
programming, and healthcare services.  These special districts receive a significant 
portion of their operating funds from their portion of countywide property taxes and/or 
special assessments, and operate under the control and oversight of their own board of 
directors. 
 
The San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District encompasses all cities in   
the county as well as the unincorporated areas. It is governed by a 21-member board   
whose members consist of appointed representatives from the various cities and the    
County Board of Supervisors.  The current City of Menlo Park representative is Ms.      
Valentina Cogoni, reappointed by the City Council in 2012. 
 
On July 18, 2013, the San Mateo County Grand Jury filed a report with the San Mateo  
Superior Court regarding the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District    
embezzlement case, which occurred between 2009 and 2011.  Pursuant to Penal Code 
section 933.05, the Superior Court requires that the City Council submit a response to   
the report's findings and recommendations no later than October 16, 2013, and that the 
response be approved by the City Council at a public meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM D-1

PAGE 3



Staff Report #: 13-162  

Staff has prepared the attached reply which is presented here for Council consideration 
and approval. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

The City of Menlo Park is required to respond to all fourteen (14) Grand Jury findings, 
stating whether: 

 
1. The City agrees with the finding;  

 
2. The City disagrees wholly or partially with the finding, in which case the City 

shall specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall explain the 
reasons for the dispute. 

 
In addition, the City is required to respond to two (2) Grand Jury recommendations 
pertaining to cities, stating whether: 
 

1. The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the 
implemented action. 
 

2. The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in 
the future, with a time frame for implementation. 
 

3. The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the 
scope and parameters of the analysis or study, and a time frame for the matter to 
be prepared for discussion by the officer or director of the agency or departing 
being investigated or reviewed, including the governing body of the public agency 
when applicable. The time frame shall not exceed six months from the date of 
publication of the Grand Jury report. 
 

4. The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or 
reasonable, with an explanation therefore. 

 
In the attached draft response to the Grand Jury report, the City states that, based on 
the information provided, it is in general agreement with the report’s findings regarding 
such issues as lack of oversight of the District’s finances and failure to follow proper 
hiring procedures. The City also states in its response that it agrees with the Grand 
Jury’s two recommendations for City/Town Councils.  
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

There is no impact on City resources associated with this action. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There is no current City policy regarding this issue. 
 

PAGE 4



Staff Report #: 13-162  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed action does not require environmental review.   
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Copy of the Grand Jury Report and the Request for Response 
B. Draft City of Menlo Park Response Letter to Judge Livermore 
 

Report prepared by: 
Clay J. Curtin 
Assistant to the City Manager 
 
 
 

PAGE 5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 6



Superior Court of California, County of San Mateo

Hall of Justice and Records
400 County Center

Redwood City, CA 94063-1655

JOHN C. FITTON (650) 599-1210
COURT EXECUTIVE OFFICER FAX (650) 363-4698

CLERK & JURY COMMISSIONER ww.sanmateocourtorg

July 18, 2013 RECEIVED

JUL22 2013
City Council
City of Menlo Park City Clerk’s Office
701 Laurel Street City of Menlo Park
Menlo Park, CA 94025

Re: Grand Jury Report: “San Mateo County Special Districts: Who is Really in Charge of the Taxpayer’s Money?
The Mosquito District Embezzlement: Is it the Tip of the Iceberg?”

Dear Councilmembers:

The 2012-2013 Grand Jury filed a report on July 18, 2013 which contains findings and recommendations pertaining
to your agency. Your agency must submit comments, within 90 days, to the Hon. Richard C. Livermore. Your
agency’s response is due no later than October 16, 2013. Please note that the response should indicate that it
was approved by your governing body at a public meeting.

For all findings, your responding agency shall indicate one of the following:

1. The respondent agrees with the fmding.

2. The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with the fmding, in which case the response shall specify
the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall include an explanation of the reasons therefore.

Additionally, as to each Grand Jury recommendation, your responding agency shall report one of the following
actions:

1. The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the implemented action.

2. The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in the future, with a
time frame for implementation.

3. The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope and parameters of
an analysis or study, and a time frame for the matter to be prepared for discussion by the officer or
director of the agency or department being investigated or reviewed, including the governing body of
the public agency when applicable. This time frame shall not exceed six months from the date of
publication of the Grand Jury report.

4. The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not waffanted or reasonable, with an
explanation therefore.

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 7



Please submit your responses in all of the following ways:

1. Responses to be placed on file with the Clerk of the Court by the Court Executive Office.

Prepare original on your agency’s letterhead, indicate the date of the public meeting that
your governing body approved the response address and mail to Judge Livermore.

Hon. Richard C. Livermore
Judge of the Superior Court

do Charlene Kresevich
Hall of Justice

400 County Center; 2nd Floor
Redwood City, CA 94063-1655.

2. Responses to be placed at the Grand Jury website.

• Copy response and send by e-mail to: arandiuryi)sanmateoconrt.org. (Insert agency name
if it is not indicated at the top of your response.)

3. Responses to be placed with the clerk of your agency.

• File a copy of the response directly with the clerk of your agency. Do not send this copy to
the Court.

For up to 45 days after the end of the term, the foreperson and the foreperson’s designees are available to clarit,’ the
recommendations of the report. To reach the foreperson, please call the Gmnd Jury Clerk at (650) 599-1210.

If you have any questions regarding these procedures, please do not hesitate to contact Paul Okada, Chief Deputy
County Counsel, at (650) 363-4761.

Very truly yours,

Yohn C. Fitton
Court Executive Officer

JCF:ck
Enclosure

cc: Hon. Richard C. Livermore
Paul Okada

Aformation Copy: City Manager

PAGE 8



SAN MATEO COUNTY SPECIAL DISTRICTS:
WHO IS REALLY IN CHARGE OF THE TAXPAYER’S MONEY?

The Mosquito District Embezzlement: Is it the Tip of the Iceberg?

SUMMARY

San Mateo County (County) has 22 independent special districts. Common in counties
throughout California, independent special districts are local governmental entities that are
legally separate from counties and cities.1 They deliver special public services such as mosquito
abatement, water management, and health care, to name a few. Special districts receive a
significant amount of their operating funds from their portion of countywide property taxes
and/or special assessments. They wield considerable influence with little oversight other than
their own board of directors. In many cases, these boards are responsible for multi-million dollar
budgets.

The recent embezzlement case in the Mosquito and Vector Control Abatement District (District)
involving hundreds of thousands of dollars prompted the 2012-2013 San Mateo County Civil
Grand Jury (Grand Jury) to investigate what led to the embezzlement. Two employees, who
oversaw financial matters for the District pleaded no contest to embezzlement charges and will
be sentenced in the latter part of 2013.

The Grand Jury finds that the Board of Trustees (collectively, Board, and individually, Trustee)
and the District’s District Manager (Manager) share in responsibility for the lack of oversight
that was instrumental in allowing the embezzlement to occur. The Grand Jury finds that the
Manager and the Board’s finance committee did not recognize red flags in financial reports that
should have revealed the embezzlement far sooner.

The Grand Jury also finds that the insurance company’s denial of the District’s embezzlement
loss claim is further evidence that there were inadequate management practices, insufficient
accountability, and oversight of the District.

The Grand Jury finds that the District’s internal financial controls were inadequate and that
important policies and procedures were not followed. The Grand Jury also finds that the Board
did an inadequate job of overseeing operations and that there were significant differences of
opinion regarding the Manager’s ability to manage the District.

The Grand Jury finds that Trustees are confused about their responsibilities, some feeling their
only role is to make district policy, while others feeling they have more oversight
responsibilities. The Grand Jury also finds that the issue of the dissolution of the District and
transfer of its services to the County Environmental Health Department (CEHD) because of the
District’s poor management and the need for more operational efficiency and cost savings, merits
further study even though the County’s Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) recently
rejected the recommendation of its executive officer to do so. The Grand Jury further finds that

‘For purposes of this report, the term “cities” includes “towns” and County government where the context so
requires.

PAGE 9



Cities do not give priority to having representation on the Board, which representation is an
important component to the oversight of the District operations

The Grand Jury recommends that the Board require its Manager to follow the Policies and
Procedures manual at all times and provide monthly financial reports to the Board.

The Grand Jury recommends that the Board emphasize the importance of its finance committee’s
role in ensuring that internal financial controls and policies are in place and are being followed.
The Grand Jury recommends that the District hire a consultant to redesign the Manager’s
evaluation process to better assess job performance and to provide clarity and goal setting. The
Grand Jury also recommends that the Board evaluate its policies and procedures on an annual
basis and study a restructuring of the Board to better fulfill its oversight role.

The Grand Jury recommends that LAFCo continue to study the possible dissolution of the
District and transfer of its services to the CEHD.

The Grand Jury recommends that cities give priority to having representation on the Board and,
if unsuccessful in recruiting appointees, comply with Health & Safety Code section 2021 and
appoint a council member in the interim. In addition, the Grand Jury recommends that cities
require representatives to give their city councils regular updates on District’s operations.

BACKGROUND

The District’s budget is approximately $6 million. It has an accumulated reserve of about $5
million. Its funding comes from property taxes, parcel assessments, and a benefit assessment. It
is governed by a Board composed of one member from each of the County’s 20 cities plus
County government. It employs a Manager to oversee its daily operations. Despite all of these
“overseers,” only one Trustee recognized a problem with an overage in operational expenses in
2011, thereby leading to the discovery of the embezzlement. After the discovery, only one city
asked for a Grand Jury investigation.

The Grand Jury learned during interviews that the Manager did not follow normal employment
vetting procedures when hiring the finance director accused of the embezzlement.

The LAFCo executive officer performed a Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence
Review (Service Review) pursuant to Government Code Sections 56425 and 56430 following
the alleged embezzlement. The report addressed public accountability and broadly examined
district operations, fiscal health, opportunities for sharing resources, and governance alternatives.
The study was not a financial audit and only identified measures the District has taken or could
take to prevent such embezzlement events.2

Subsequent to the Service Review, the LAFCo executive officer recommended that the District
be dissolved and incorporated into the CEHD, which might result in a cost savings. However, the
LAFCo commissioners rejected the recommendation and deferred any further decision on the
subject to a later review after the Manager completed a Performance Improvement Plan as

2
June 12, 2012, LAFCo Municipal Service Review.

PAGE 10



required by the District Board. However, LAFCo has taken no further action on the District
matter.

It is important for County taxpayers to understand special district governance structure and the
responsibility of special district boards with regard to such issues as embezzlement.

Concerns about special district management practices, accountability, and oversight were the
impetus for a Grand Jury investigation.

METHODOLOGY

Documents

The Grand Jury reviewed the following documents:

• The LAFCO Service Review of the District, dated June 12, 2012

• The District’s certified financial audits for fiscal years ending June 30, 2009, 2010, and
2011

• Letter of concern from a member city

• Documents from three former senior District employees including timelines of
management judgments, financial invoices, and grievance letters to Trustees

• Personnel files of certain District employees

• Forensic audit performed in 2011 by C.G. Ulenberg, the District’s regular auditor

• Correspondence regarding the Hartford Insurance claim

• Report issued by Dr. Peter Hughes, CPA, a consultant retained by the District to review
its accounting policies.

Survey

• The Grand Jury sent a survey to all County independent special districts

Site Tours

• The Grand Jury toured the District’s headquarters and laboratory located at 1351 Rollins
Road, Burlingame.

Interviews

• The Grand Jury interviewed 13 individuals. Interviewees included representatives from
the District and its Board; representatives from LAFCo and its Commission; former key

PAGE 11



District employees; auditors; and County Counsel attorneys who have represented the
District.

Subpoenas

• The Grand Jury’s presiding judge issued five subpoenas in order to obtain information.
(Relatedly, it is noted that the Board declined to waive its attorney client privilege with
the County Counsel when the Grand Jury requested it to do so.)

DISCUSSION

District Embezzlement

The noticing by one Trustee in early 2011 of discrepancies between budgeted and actual
expenditures led to the discovery of the embezzlement. This Trustee brought the information to
the attention of the Manager and the other Trustees. In addition, annual certified audits by the
District’s outside accounting firm for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 identified significant
deficiencies that went unresolved during the period of time in which the embezzlement took
place. Examples of such deficiencies included the failure properly to record accounting
transactions and petty cash management.

The District embezzlement was unique according to one qualified interviewee, because it
involved the entire finance department, consisting of two employees. These two employees are
no longer with the District, and the County District Attorney has charged them with
embezzlement. The employees have pleaded no contest and are awaiting sentencing.

Prosecutors alleged that District funds were embezzled between 2009 and 2011 when the finance
director and her assistant placed themselves at a higher pay rate, fraudulently took time off,
contributed excessively to their deferred compensation funds, used credit cards for personal
purchases, and electronically transferred money into personal accounts. The forensic audit
(described below) showed more than $635,000 missing but prosecutors charged them with
embezzling only $400,000 because they could not prove an actual loss of the greater amount3
The District’s forensic auditor calculated the total loss resulting from the embezzlement to be
$796,781. (Appendix A.) This is the amount the District reported to its insurance company.

The annual certified audits of the District for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 suggested that there was
a lack of sound management and fiscal responsibility. A subsequent forensic audit of the District
listed “ten distinct loss activities that were executed against the District by 2 former
employees... These loss activities included incorrect pay calculations to employees,
unauthorized and personal use of credit cards, and fraudulent reporting of time off for Family
Medical Leave Act (FMLA). While taking FMLA, one employee served jail time for a previous
embezzlement.

End in sightfor mosquito district case: Formerfinance chiefexpected to plead guilty on JO charges related to
embezzlement ofpublic money, March 22, 2013, Heather Murtagh - Daily Journal Staff.

See Appendix B.

PAGE 12



After the allegations of embezzlement, some of the Trustees determined the Manager’s skills
were inadequate for the position.5The Board hired an outside consultant to perform a review of
the internal financial controls. Notwithstanding this state of affairs, the Trustees voted to extend
the Manager’s contract and paid the outside consultant to prepare a Performance Improvement
Plan for the Manager to complete in an effort to avoid any further incidents.

The District’s insurance company has declined to pay on its loss claim given the circumstances
surrounding the embezzlement, The insurance company’s outside legal counsel stated that the
District “misrepresented” its computer controls and should have had systems in place to detect
unusual activity. The District disputes this.6 The District has retained additional counsel to
negotiate this matter.

The District indicated in its insurance application that no employee could control a process from
the beginning to the end, e.g., request a check, approve a voucher, and sign the check. The
District’s internal controls required the Manager and a Board officer to approve requests for
payment and to sign on checks.7However, the finance department used signature stamps that
seemed to by-pass this control. Attorneys for the District argue that “the insurance company was
already aware of the lack of controls designed to prevent an embezzlement of this nature”.8It
should be noted that insurance for these special districts frequently does not cover the costs for
attorneys, audits, or other costs associated with embezzlement.

Embezzlement may be more prevalent in districts than has been revealed to date. For example, in
addition to the District, employee fraud cases in the following County special or school districts
have come to light in the last two years alone. Although three of the cases do not relate to special
districts, the underlying problems, inadequate controls and oversight, are the same:

• Woodside Elementary School District

• Portola Valley School District

• Mid-Peninsula Water District (It should be noted that LAFCO’s executive officer has
also recommended that this district be dissolved.)

• San Mateo County Community College District

The District embezzlement case may be the tip ofthe ice berg. As one interviewee stated, with so
many special districts in this county and counties throughout the Bay area and state,
“embezzlements are not unusual,” which is no comfort to the taxpayers. However, with sound
internal financial controls and good management practices, the risk of embezzlement can be
minimized.

Board Evaluations of the District Manager.

Letter dated April 11, 2012, from Meredith, Weinstein & Numbers, LLP pg 3 (See Appendix C).

Ibid.

8lbid.

PAGE 13



District Operations

After extensive investigation, the Grand Jury learned of oversight shortcomings and management
issues that include the following:

• Standard business practices, such as performing detailed background checks, were not
followed in the hiring of the finance director accused of embezzling. As a result, the
District hired an individual who was already under indictment in another embezzlement
case.

• The Manager and the Board’s finance committee did not recognize red flags in financial
reports that could have revealed the embezzlement far sooner. Examples include the
budget overage (ultimately noticed by a Trustee), lack of complete monthly financial
packages as provided by the previous finance director, and discrepancies revealed in two
years’ annual audits. Board complaints to the Manager concerning financial reports were
answered with the excuse that a new accounting system had been installed and that there
were issues with the County Controllers staff

• The Trustees’ written evaluations of the Manager’s performance revealed significant
differences of opinion. Some Trustees gave the Manager high ratings while others
expressed little confidence in the Manager’s ability to manage the District. Others
indicated they did not trust the Manager and felt the Manager was excessively controlling
information provided to the Board.

• Internal financial controls in place at the time of the embezzlement were inadequately
implemented. For example, controls required that both the Manager and a Board officer to
sign checks issued by the finance department for payments. However, the finance
department used signature stamps that seemed to by-pass this control.

• The Manager hired unlicensed and uninsured contractors to work on District facilities, a
violation of District policies.

• Surplus vehicles were sold to employees and friends, a practice that the Grand Jury was
informed has been discontinued.

• The issuance of Visa cards to employees for the purchase of materials led to abuse. The
Visa cards had high limits and there was little oversight of their use. The finance director
used a Visa card to pay her attorneys for a previous embezzlement case. Neither the
Manager nor the Board’s finance committee caught improper charges of up to $15,000
placed on the card.

• There was an amendment to the District Policies and Procedures manual in 2007 that
stated, “dismissal of the current District manager would require 90% of the Trustees’
approval.” The Grand Jury requested and received an updated version of the manual. The
entire section 2160 titled “Separation from District Employment” is no longer in the
current manual. It has been replaced by a new section 2160 titled “Salary and Benefit
Survey.” No further information was provided as to the reasons for this change.

PAGE 14



The embezzlement incident was costly, with additional losses still being discovered. The loss
submitted to the insurance company was over $790,000 but does not include related costs such as
attorney fees, consultants, and financial training.9Some of the loss may be covered by insurance,
but as of May 1, 2013, the insurance company has denied the claim citing misrepresentation of
facts in the District’s insurance application and the failure of the District to perform appropriate
background checks.

Following the embezzlement and subsequent evaluation of the Manager, the Board chose to
implement a Performance Improvement Plan in order to improve the Manager’s financial
management skills. The Board also extended the Manger’s employment contract and increased
the Manager’s compensation.

Also after the embezzlement, a new consultant prepared eight recommendations to improve the
district’s internal financial controls. (See Appendix D, an excerpt of the consultant’s report). The
Grand Jury has been advised that these recommendations have been implemented. As a result,
the financial system was rebuilt. An interviewee familiar with the consultant’s review opined that
the Manager had program skills but lacked the fiscal skills necessary for overseeing financial
operations.

District Board

A 21-member Board governs the District. The voters elect other San Mateo County special
district governing bodies, which differentiates them from the Board, whose members are selected
by city councils. The District began covering the entire County in 2005. In this circumstance, the
Health & Safety Code provides that cities may appoint a Trustee to the Board. The Trustees’
direct responsibility is to the city councils that appointed them, not directly to the voters. The
Health & Safety Code also states that the legislative intent is that members have experience,
training, and education in fields that will assist in governing the district.’0

One question raised during the investigation was whether a Board of 21 members could be
effective. The Board president appoints members to the following standing committees: Finance,
Policy, Strategic Planning, Environmental, and Manager Evaluation. One interviewee stated,
“Authority may be dissipated when responsibility gets diffused over a large group.” With a large
board it can be difficult to have accountability for decisions made. A few Trustees expressed
interest in studying another governance model that would reduce the size of the Board. Through
document review and interviews, the Grand Jury learned that there are varying opinions
regarding what Trustees believe to be their roles and responsibilities. Some Trustees feel their
only role is to make policy, while others feel they have more oversight responsibility.

When a number of employees tried to approach Trustees to express concerns about the Manager,
they were turned away for not following the chain of command. Relatedly, there was confusion
about communications between staff and Trustees. In light of these communication issues, the
Peninsula Vector Workers Association requested that the Trustees review and revise the District
policies governing communication between staff and Trustees.

9See Appendix A.

State Health Code section 2021.

PAGE 15



The Grand Jury learned that Trustees requested financial information from the Manager during
the embezzlement period but the request was not honored. The Trustees did not heed warnings
from senior District employees about financial irregularities. The Trustees put total trust in the
Manager to fulfill the mission of the District and seemed oblivious to the business operations and
its problems.’1Statements by Trustees in earlier reviews of the Manager showed confusion
among the Trustees regarding the Manager’s general performance capabilities. One Trustee told
the Grand Jury that the evaluation process was inadequate and should be reviewed by a qualified
human resources consultant.

LAFCo

Local agency formation commissions were established by the State of California in 1963 to
oversee the formation, expansion, dissolution, and reorganization of all special districts. LAFCo
is an independent seven-member commission with jurisdiction over the boundaries of the
County’s 20 cities, 22 independent special districts, and many of the 35 County-governed special
districts. LAFCo is composed of two members of the County Board of Supervisors, two
members of city councils, two board members of independent special districts, a public member,
and four alternate members (County, city, special district, and public).

Local agency formation commissions oversee districts but have limited powers. The Cortese
Knox-Hertzberg Act of 2000 requires that they conduct Service Reviews every five
years.’2LAFCo’s executive officer, with the help of a part-time administrative assistant, conducts
the Service Reviews. LAFCo’s current staffing level makes it difficult to conduct Service
Reviews in a timely manner as required by law. The 2002-2003 Grand Jury recommended that
the Board of Supervisors provide additional resources to LAFCo, but the recommendation has
not been implemented.

Service Reviews provide the public with information about the special district including
“[a]ccountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational
efficiencies.”3They can also recommend whether a special district should be merged with
another district or dissolved and services transferred to another agency. If LAFCo recommends
that a district be dissolved or merged with another district, generally speaking, the approval of
75% of the voters in the special district is required. LAFCo’s authority is thus limited.
Recommendations made by LAFCo are usually the result of a Service Review.

Subsequent to the Service Review of the District, the LAFCo executive officer recommended
that the District be dissolved and incorporated into the CEHD, which might result in a cost
savings, from the sharing financial services, laboratories, and other facilities. It should also be
noted that LAFCo’s executive officer recommended dissolution of both special districts where
embezzlements occurred, but the LAFCo Commissioners did not approve these
recommendations.

Grand Jury interview and evaluation document.

LAFCo website.
13

Government Code Section 56430.

PAGE 16



Cities’ Responsibilities to the District

The District encompasses the entire County. Health & Safety Code Section 2021 states that the
Board of Supervisors may appoint one person to the Board and the city councils of each city
located in whole or in part within the District may appoint one person to the Board. Health &
Safety Code Sections 2022(c) and (d), states:

• Applicants should be qualified in fields that will assist in governance of the district.

• Cities may appoint a councilmember to the Board if they are unable to find a qualified
candidate.

The Board of Supervisors and city councils often suffer from a lack of applicants from which to
select a representative. At the time of this report, the Town of Colma had no representation on
the Board. This might be due in part to unsuccessful recruitment efforts. Although applicants
may be conscientious and well meaning, they may not have the necessary skills or experience to
sit on the Board. While all cities should have representation on the Board, it appears that
providing representation is not a city priority.

During interviews, the Grand Jury learned that most cities do not mention the District on their
websites, nor do they require their representatives to give regular updates to the city councils
about the District’s operations.

Survey of Independent Special Districts

The Grand Jury distributed a survey to all independent special districts to better understand the
compensation for their board members and the amount of public funds for which they are
responsible. The survey yielded the following information:

• Most districts have a 5 member elected board; a few have a 3 member elected board,
while the District has a 21-member non-elected board.

• More than half of the board members are compensated from $100 per month to $600 per
month. The District Board is paid $100 per month

• More than half of the boards compensate members for workshop or conference events
and some have medical and life insurance benefits. A few boards are not compensated at
all. The District Board is also compensated for workshops or conferences events.

• The reserves of districts range from $775,000 to $47 million dollars. The District’s
reserves are $5 million.

It should be noted that not all districts responded to the survey request14

14
San Mateo County Grand Jury Special Districts Survey 2013.

PAGE 17



FINDINGS

F 1. The Board and the Manager share in responsibility for the lack of oversight that was
instrumental in allowing the embezzlement to occur.

F2. The Manager and the Board’s finance committee did not recognize red flags in the
fmancial reports that could have revealed the embezzlement far sooner.

F3. The insurance company’s denial of the District’s embezzlement loss claim reinforces the
conclusion that there were inadequate management practices, insufficient accountability,
and inadequate oversight of the District.

F4. The District’s Manager did not follow policies and procedures in the hiring of one of the
employees subsequently charged with embezzlement.

F5. The District did not have adequate internal financial controls in place to prevent the
embezzlement or lead to its early discovery.

F6. Trustees and senior District staff should receive monthly financial reports.

F7. The Board in general and its finance committee in particular did an inadequate job of
overseeing the District’s operations.

F8. The Board’s evaluation of the Manager revealed significant differences in the levels of
confidence in the Manager’s ability to manage the District.

F9. The District would benefit from a redesigned Manager evaluation process.

F 10. Trustees are confused about their responsibilities, some feeling their only role is to make
district policy, while others feel they have more oversight responsibility.

Fl 1. Even though LAFCo Commissioners rejected the recommendation to dissolve the District
and transfer its functions to the CEHD, this issue needs further evaluation.

F12. Cost savings could possibly be achieved with a transfer of the District’s functions to the
CEHD.

F 13. LAFCo would benefit from additional resources to ensure Service Reviews, as mandated
by state law, are performed in a timely fashion.

F14. Not all cities appoint a representative to the Board in a timely fashion or select a qualified
individual as stipulated in the Health Code.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Grand Jury recommends that the Board do the following:

Rl. Instruct the Manager to follow the Policies and Procedures manual at all times.

R2. Instruct the Manager to provide complete financial reports to the Board on a monthly
basis.

R3. Improve its oversight of the District through an improved governance structure and hold
the Manager accountable for its operations.

PAGE 18



R4. Evaluate its Policies and Procedures manual on an annual basis and make the manual
available to employees and the public.

R5. Emphasize the importance of the finance committee’s role in ensuring that internal
controls and policies are in place and are being followed.

R6. Hire a human resources consultant to redesign the Manager’s evaluation process in order
to better assess the Manager’s job performance.

R7. Clarify Trustees’ roles and reinforce and discuss expectations of the position at an annual
meeting.

The Grand Jury recommends that the County Board ofSupervisors do the following:

R8. Provide increased resources to LAFCo so it can meet state mandates with regard to
Service Reviews.

The Grand Jury recommends that LAFCo do the following:

R9. Further study the dissolution of the District and evaluate the cost savings that might result
from transferring the function to the County Environmental Health Department.

The Grand Jury recommends that the City/Town Councils do the following:

Ri 0. Appoint a council member to the District Board if a representative cannot be found after
vetting applicants.

Ri 1. Require regular reporting about the District’s operations by their representative at a
scheduled council meeting.

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES

Pursuant to Penal code section 933.05, the Grand Jury requests the following to respond to the
foregoing Findings and Recommendations referring in each instance to the number thereof:

• District Board of Trustees

• County Board of Supervisors

• LAFCo

• City/Town Councils

PAGE 19



The governing bodies indicated above should be aware that the comment or response of the
governing body must be conducted subject to the notice, agenda and open meeting requirements
of the Brown Act.

Reports issued by the Civil Grand Jury do not identi’ individuals interviewed. Penal Code Section 929 requires that reports of
the Grand Jury not contain the name of any person or facts leading to the identity of any person who provides information to
the Civil Grand Jury.

DISCLAIMER

This report is issued by the Grand Jury with the exception of one member who sits on the District
Board. This individual was excluded from all parts of the Grand Jury’s investigation and the
making and acceptance of this report. This report is based on information from outside sources
with none of the information being obtained from the excluded Grand Juror.

PAGE 20



APPENDIX A

C. G. UHLENBBRG LLP
- CLRTIPZED PUBLIC ACCOtflJrANTS& CONSULTANTS

November 17,1031

Robert Gq
District Manarer
2415 Mateo Coenty Mosquito and Vectorcontroi District
1351 Rollins Road
&rlirnnte,CA 94010

As described in our leVer dated CictnLter 24, 2013, we wan engaged by the San Maine County

Mnsqwto end Veeror Control District (the “District”) to perform a forensic accounting

Lwestgntn. The nature of our procedures were limited, therefore. eddidonni fraud nor

identified may exist In that tatter and in the report accompanying that Iacr, RemAn qfForensic
bwerig4moa by CC. Tifelenbrrg LOP, we identified ten. loss twtiwties that were executed auninat

the District byi former emploveex The loss activities identified and the amount GROSS

ealcuated by our firm are as INlows:

_________

fltsetlptlon of Less

__________

S 55,45137

2’ incntre4ml pay calculation to emptoyees S 30,99532

3, Praudulest tlaferrad Compensation 5 i&45000

4. Unauthorized srd otrannal use ofercdit cards S 335,432MG

5. Unauthorized and personal use of eieco’nnk fetid transfers S Il13,364S2

0 2 trucirs removed from prooezty S 4400MG

7, Unntpwattadcnscbcashed 3 1,34932

8, Ursurpnztac! cheeks written to irdpinjtxa S £,59L14

9- Rctldcrtha2’JlOJ2tjlJScnlims S [55,067MG

10 Fraudqiontrepcntngoftirne err itmrFMLA S t’50.vu

total ten tiiianttfied S 796,12333

This sutnman’ should ne iced itt conjunction with Our iNter dated October 20,2111 and the report

accomusnying that letter, £cmraslss ofFcn,zsic: !nweritrcsr&rn hr CC, UIenbengLLP.

Sincerely.

)eft9c 1. Ira. CPth

Artedunent: Letter to District from CG Uhietrbtrg dated October 26, 2031

I’ ., ‘A ,,,, rc,,, r e aast’ * ai.,.,,. rein’ natnete P, uc’tnt 1-n7,nA:

PAGE 21



APPENDIX B

C. G. UHLENBERGLLP
i-I — PUBLIC ACcOUnfiifl & CONSULTANTS

Camber 2d WI

RobnrtGay
Dbtrlcn Manager’
San Mateotoerdy Muscuito and Vent Control District
1351 Ruliba Road
Butiagema, CA 94010

We were enraged by’ tht San Mateo County Mosqeito and Vector Control Cistrica (the “Dietricfl
to perfomi a Wrensic a tUg investigation. The natare etour geocedures are iterated,
tharafbra. addftionai bud not identified in this report may exist As a reault ofnor tigation
e identified ten distinct loss activities that ware executed against the DiS6*t by 2 fanner
e.iflyees Jo Mn Dernw’ “Jo Ann7 totter Frratwa sector ..nd V L- Sm pats C v
Aeccareting Sttpatvinor. A‘tbss::activity” in dciincd as & deliberate action by So Ann anthor V&s
that resulted in tnorrswy Ices to the District.

The report dasertoen astir of baa sot vthrta denrsfisd try fl-zr irrrt dunng Is aettgatton Thin,
era listed as fiction

1. Unauthorizad arid excessive cry to Vita and So Aria — extra payments arid incorrect pay

2. incorrect p ye icutatlon ‘to employees
3. Fraudulent Deferred Compensation contributions — Vita aM Sc Ann
4. Unauthorized end personal me of credit cards — Vita arid Sn Rail
5. Unauthorized end per-enact one oretectronic. fund transfers (ACI-{} — Vikr arid 10 Ann
6. 2Truckereanovedfnnnt property (2/2(11 1)-loRan
7. U nportaddcicecedssd -Jo Anti
S. Urrscroporred checks written to led Parties for pereanat benefit
9. Rebuild tIthe 201 W2D’It Books
H). Fraudulent repordn of time oWforFMLA Jo Ants

The SoLar value and daaeriØtio&of their a izonather created’ these kisses are deacribcd in
anin’nie-rt tesnnrrr ofJtirensr.. icsca-otmg finresugnnor cryC 0 Ui-? nec g UP We nave
rep..rtd two cop as scoprrng doeumesarasion cr1 the losses en zwcr olneers which ieee
already been flesded toyOu. The descriptions of what is contained Ira those hinders are included
in the Results qffinzsfr Acccnmthzgisnestigcdon OsrCG, Lmleethsr,ç LAP.

Per your recuerra, we have provided sonic of the infomietirin contained in this rarron to the
District Attorney’s office. If you hairs any oenainzn, pines do not hestrate to contact nra or
Jennifer Deranore

Sincerely,

4.rflhr( 1. irs. tfl

Attechninnrs: Rerrn/rr fPorn-ask Accnsntring Inuesdgor/on by CO. Clirerrarrg LAP

$13 tq-ts D&nhii flrirtinie, 230. itidnad Cia,. CA 945555 PSon, irise:s 50$-SW. Ito ($50) sne-OStS

PAGE 22



APPENDIX C

Meredith, %efnsteth & Numbers, LLP

115 ?Isrd sine
Lgd&*cur, Caitea 54925

Te1hore (415) azr-as•ao a2csvi (415 sar.eres

April lt 2013

Gaty I Valehano
Anderson, MtPhartin & Connors MY
444 South FiowerStreet, 31st Floor
Los Ang&es, CA 90071-2001
Email: ojverndaw.com

Re: an Mateo County Mosquito and Vecor Control District En,oioyee Theft
Hartford Clam No 11392534
Yaw File No.: 0022..&$B

Deer Mr. Veleriano:

ThIs will respond preminarIiy to your lettsr dated March 6, 2013, in which u
nov so that Hartford has denied coverage n this matter The Drrtct Is bath suronsed
and offended that alto, dragging this mater on for neartytwo y:ors Hartford has
chosen ao avoic as rescons[biIthes by denying cosetagefor the very misconduct rJet
Hartford agreec to insure under potcies for whon Hartford received V Lees 6 years of
premiumtHarrforos investiganori at this claim. inctuding repeated requests Sr the
same riforrnatlon it had already race-ted otainly demonstrates tret Hartrord has cram
considerable resources looking for ways to avoid honoilng Its oblIgatIons, rather than
asssstng as insured in resporw.nng to this cataa’rophsc loss I will not review the
ch onoiogv of e”e’ds In this tetter, but the correspondence owe the pest two seers
speaks for Itseit.

The District timely reporLed discovery of the scheme involving Seeney end
Sinipate ir June of 2011 There s nod soute that the loss Is a ca.tered loss undo
Sen on Al A of the Hart-ord polio’, Scenex end 3lnoaa ware’rployees sho
embezzled rnoneyfrom the District, causing a covered loss,

Hartford asserts that if the District had looked Into Seeney’s background prior to
hiring rear it would have discovered her crnne’ past. However, whethr o no this it
tj it is Irrelevant There was no requirement that the Disutct check for past criminal
activity In fact Section C of the epohcatfln asks se’eral ouestions about whether the
Dlstnct conducted preernployment background checks aki the Gist-jot answered ho

to east of them Accord’ngly the Dist’ic4a failure to conduct background Ohecks does
not suoport a denm othe claim, are Hartford a referanoe to oackgrcund checks
demonstrates Hartford’s attempt to manufacture reasons for its denial.

PAGE 23



Mt. VanO
Apr11 11. 2L3
i2o

Hartford also rele on $ection F of the Pofloy. v
void in eny ce of fraud by yo as it reetes to this Policy at any rime. z is cisc voici ir
you or any other insured, at any time, intentionay con real or misrepsent a materia
fact concerning .,This Polloy. ‘ The terms You or any other insured clearly refer to
the named irsursds only; here, the District in the named insured. The term is not
defrned to indud misrepresentations by employees or agents of the District and there
is no evidence that the District Intentionally concealed or misrepresented a material fact
concerning the Pc4 icy, Any ambiguities as to who must engage fri the
miarepresentatiarie will be construed against Hartford. A]n insurer who wishes to
condition its contractuai liability upon the irisureds conformance with certajn conduct
must do so in dear, unambiguous 1anguage. Hoiz i’hibet Co., Inc. v. Am.. Star Ins
Cc., 14 Ccl, 3d 45. 5 1975).

In addtion, the policy also provides coverage for the faure of an errplnyee to
talthfuliy perform his or her duties as prescribed by isw Which results in loss of money
or other property. Ehdorasment’ 3 If SinipetWs failure to fe ithfuily and ac.irstey
complete the application for hsurcrice resulted in loss for which the Dlstrkt would
otherwise be entitled to coverage under this policy, then this loss itself would be
covered under the Policy.

The 2010 policy was renewed for the same premium as the previous ysas.
Hartford received its MI premiums to insure against this very risk. Hartford has earned
its premium for continuous coverage, and it would be inequitable to allow Hartford to
forfeit the coverage because of the very theft It agreed to cover, simply because the
perpetrator happened to be the same person that was assigned the administrative task
of i[1ng out the renewal application. See Root ieican Equity Specic!ty Ins. Co,
130 CaLApp.4th 926 2005.

As far as the District was concerned, the answers on the applicatiorrfor 2010
were correct. The Dmstiict concealed nothing. If anyone else had filled out the application
instead of Seeney or Sin ipata, the answers undoubtedly would have been the same arid
there would be no issue as to misrepresentation or concealment Furthermore, the
answers on the 2010 renewal application were vittucily the same as on the prior
aplicaticn; nothing material in the Districts procedures had chenged.

Neither 3eaney nor Sinipta was authorized to access the signature plates
without priOr approval. The fact that they improperly accessed the plates, unbeknmst
to anyone also in the District was part of how they perpetrated their embezzlement
cherne. Moreoveç in Section E.2 CfIho 2010 application the District states that
facsimile plates are used for signatures, but does riot respond to the question of who
can use them or how they are safeguarded. Hartford did not even foow up on this
question and, accordingly, the Information clearly was not material to Hartford’s
underwriting.

Hartford argues that the District misrepresented the computer controls, end Cr
should have had systems in place to detect unusuar activity. However, on both the 201(i

PAGE 24



‘ tno
Apiii 11, Qj2

r5

and tFie prior app cation the District answered “no to the question at Section 2.5, 3re
thterna contri systems designed so that no employee can control a process from
begin&ng to end (e.g. reqi.ieat a check. approve a voucher arid sign the check)r
Hatford did not follow up on this, eIther. Hartford was aware of the DIstricts lac4 of
control systems desigred to prevent the exact type of scheme that Seiey and Slnipat
were able to oerpetrate. Accordingly. Hartford cannot proie that the District -

rrdsrep4-se,ted the safeguards In place or that tnis was naterI3lto the decision o
sue the o’cy.

Hartfod arues that Sns ar! Sinip4a’s know! de of their own wrongdoing
snould be imptrted o the District, based on princIples of agency and therefore it should
bo ebsolved from any coverage responsibility, However, knowledge is not imputed
where the agent is acting on his own behalf and adversely to the interests of the
principal “While in geriera the knowledge of an agent which he is under a duty to
discose is to be imputed to the pnncipsl it is well established that whCr the eont acts
in his awn interest or where the irterest of the agent is adverse to riis prinp51 he
knowledge of the agent will not be iriputed to the pnncipaL People V. Paik. 67 Ccl.
App. 3d 50, 566 (Cal. Ct. App. 1q78) (cltations omitted); se: also Fiwcrcofony Estates
Gn P’ship v. Bayvtew Fin Treding Group, inc., 267 F. Supp. 2d 1213, 1227 (S.D. Cal.
2003)(‘4Courts, fiirthermore, wiB not impute an agent’s actions to his or her principal
when the aaent’s action Is adverse to the principal”),

Hartford relies on In re Payroll Expre.s Corp., 186 F.3d i6 (2nd Cir. 1999), for
the proaositicn that tt’: Tnsurd, rather than the thtirer, shoud bear the risk in such a
situtior. Payroll Lprss reiic on New JersOy law for this linding and is not in
acoordaac with other jirisdictioris ih5t have addressed this i’sue. Se’s. e.g., Mviand
s. Co. v. Tulsa Thdus. Loar, & Irw. Zo., 63 F.2c 14 18i7 ‘i0:h Cir. 193; Pucat
Sound Narl8ankc St. Paul Fire & Marine ins. Go, 32 Wasft.App. 32, 645 P.2Cf 1127,
1126—28 WashApp. 1982); 8w?cln$ure, inc v. U.K. Bencoiporetion incJUniled
Centwky Bank of Pendteton Govnfy Inc., 830 F. Supp. 2d 294, 301 (ED Ky. 2011);
Federel Deposit Iris. Corp. it. Loft, 460 F.2d 82, 88 (5th Cir.1 972). But moro lmportantlv,
Payroll Express is cry distinguishable oi, the facta There, the founder, Pres’dert ano
CEO and Na wife, who joi itly owned 100% of the interest in the company were
erigaed in a lorigztanding ernbezziernent scheme prbr to int!ia9l applying for tw
poiioi’e at issue. PyIi Expross Cov., 186 F 3d at U0.

Likewise, n West American Finance Co. v. Pacific Indemnity Co, 17 Cal. App 2d
225 (1936), the individuals involved in the fraudulent scheme inchidect the president and
three other officers who jointly made up a majoiity of-the board & directors and owned
al the stock of the insured company. In effect thoy were “taking out indemnity bonds
insiring their own fidelity.’ Id at 229. The Court made this a central ocv” of its decision
Ic deny the company the bn&lts of the nicy.

irule this .roup o n”er w— ía ‘hu proed to taste these ‘osses on
the corporation’s shoulders they were at the same time, as the govrning
board of directors of the corporation, obtaining from the finsurer] fidelity

PAGE 25



Vrjrio
Apñi it, 2O1
Page 4 ot S

bo9ds rrsuring their own nonooty to” the ‘ery pumose of placi the
corporation, and incidentally themselves a thc ownes of the rnajorfty of
the vote coritrotlinq soc3c therein, in position to recoup from the surei
the bsses which they were bringing about by their own wrongful ac.

it 235 Or these facts, the Court determined rat the knowege of the majority
shareholders was imputed to th company The Court refised to appy the advre
interact exception because it found that the officers were acling for tne corpcration in
th transaction, even Itiough they had en cposing perscn& nteret. kL t 236, The
reason for ths exception is obvious: whe’e the officers control the corporaton itself,
tLetr actions are deemed to be the actions of the corpoation.

These cases ar best axpIrned cy the soFe actor’ exception to the adverse
interests doctrine. CaflfornIa courts have reccçnzed a limited exreptior to the nile tha
t,tie acts ofn ofcer ectfnq adversely to a company will riot be aributed to it In re
G&tfami T1 Investments L,LC I 07-K-13OO3-GM, 2013 WL 827718 (Bankr. C D Cal
Mar 6, 2013> see also FederI Depo&t Ins. Garp, V. Loti, 40 F..2d 82. 88 (5th
Cir1 972). This doctrine is used to impute the fraudulent conduct of an officer and sole-
shareholder to the corporation in spite of the fact that his actIons were adverse to i !
(citing Peregdne Funding, Inc. v. Sheppard Mu/tin Richter& Hampton LLP, 133 Cal,
Aop. 4th 658, 679 20cl5 see also Golf Drape’y Cleaners, mc!. v Sccuoia Ins. Co, 14
CaLApp 4th 1 55 (1993). This exception does not apply in the present case, howevai,
baue Seeney and Sinipata were not the Oisict’s decision makers: Courts have
riecrined to imcute this exception. ho*eveç where it has not been estbllshed that all
relevant decision makers for the corporation were engaged In the !d (citing
Cosey v U.S. BankNarl Ass’n, 127 GaLApp.4th 1138. 1143 2Q05)).

Here, the District decided to obtain Insurance from 1artiord long before hiring
Seeney and Sinipata. Neither Seeney nor Sintoata were rnembe’s of the board, et
lono ownere and/or sole ‘epesentatives of the District, Seeny and Sinipata were in
o position to directly eneflt from Ihe policy, and the District obtained no enefft from
their alleged iiropresentebcns, If Sedney or Sinipata had not i9lled out the aoplication,
some other employee would have, with the same answers. The ailuro to asctosi
iosss due to their own :raud on the application for insurance only preventec the District
from discovenrig it sooner and timely reporting the oss under th prior oolicy, which
neither Seeney nor Sinipat w lnvoved in procurinic,

Hartford has cited no cases dealing with an innocent corpo’a&i where an ofr
who did not have soe control cf the company lied on a renewal application. On the
other hrid in Bancinure, inc. UK. a9copo1tfon IncJUnlied Ker,fucky Bank or
Pendlefon county. Inc., 830 F. Supp. 2d 294 (ED. Ky. 2011), the court wes laced with
INs very scenario, The court reviewed the state of the law nationaLly, and found That the
ew jurisdictions that have eddressed tnis particular issue havc handed down oppoafte
resdts. Id, at 301. The court disagreed with Payroll Expiss, end held that the actions
of a dishonest officer who lied on a renewal application to cover up her own misdeeds
was riot hnputed to the insired, and therefore the Oil was nor rescirdable Id The

PAGE 26



Mr. Vlerfem
ApiS 11,2013
Page S at B

cows round Wood Hwas acung adverse to tIne insured a) Interests when she hed on the
renewal application. had she been honest in completing the applications4(the insured]
would have been able to submits timely daim under the FIB (financial institution bond].
Thus by lying on the apphoabon. (the tnsuredj did not benefit in any way Id at 302 As
in the current case, ¶sad any other officer or director tilled out the application, there
would be no question that Wood’s knowledge would riot be imputed It [the Insured] arid
the PoLoy viould remain in effect ft woifid be unjust o resord me pohoies now
stmp½ because the [employee] happened to oe the one who filled out toe acoication
W at 305.

The sane result was reached in Puget Sound Mit7 Bank v; SL Pad Fire &
Mari7elna Co., 32 Wash. Apo. 32, 645 P2d 1122 fWaah.tApp.1982), There the
court held that the echorse interest ecepion applied aM even though the defalcanrig
offloer was a Director, be was not The sole represertWive The insured hac a boerd of
directon, at WI ace behest he filled out the application, and who had no knowledge or
the director’s wrongdoing. The Court found that 0000ea[1msntofNs wrongdoing on the
acp icahon *as rot In the best interests or the insured and therefore their interests
was adverse. Id. at 43; see also Maryland Cfl Cc. v. Thlsa ki.st Loan & Investment
Ca. 83 FId 14 (10th Ct 1935). In the present case, Seeney and SiNpata were not
acting in the Interest of the Distn’ct and therefore their knowledge will ha irpputed to
defeat coverage.

Regardless otv hethr hartiord is able to con’iroe a tour’ that covnge unde
s’e 2010 policy was forreited by the very trauo Haruord had agreed to insure Hartfo d
4gnores the fact that when the fraud was cornrnthec, Hatord affordeci coverage under
its 2007 eohcy Although the insured ay not have discomered the theft dunrig the
polio) period, because Hortiord asserts the it would not have Issued toe 2010 pclL3 but
ton the staements In he application then a court certa’nl) wu’ IhCI ccerage under
Hartford’s earlier p0110)1 to avoid a ‘ojfe,ture Forfeftres are no favored henos a
oonflct, eon conortioris , a contract, will It possible be con&rued to avoid rorreiture
This is particulady titie of insurance contracts O’Monow v Bored 27 Ccl 2d 794,
300 801 (1948r (citations omtrec) see also Root t’ Mitt EqiSy Specialty Ins Ca 130
Cal App 4th 928 948 (2005)

W appreciate Hartford’s expressed willingness to continue discussing this
metier. The iltstrict would be happy to meet for further discussbn.

truly yaw’s.

( / ,
,,

\ 7 Z:C%z ç,,,,,
Barton L. Weinstein

BLW:cdy

PAGE 27



APPENDIX D

JLnf I5 2012

Mr1e4
tfltxit Mar.2e
SaMateo GunLy
Mswt ad Vct*rCntd mvt
(McMvcD)
UM
S1,ThaRe CA 94GW

Axe1SMCMVCD flitIFt& VtrId
nrnendpetits

Mr. G,

At yci rcquc I.avc con± an aei: SMtMYCD systcm of 1uiaial
rtcrn.a ccLTrois for pai1I, c.ash disurscrncuts. cquipment thposa1, ty cash and
r•±.t usage. indcd rc gt fithn and rcc )1ftl.niiu. fo yuui
cd-tio rz’dig potnriai conird .cmcern ;vth additca1 proceduns that

drcs the c:.i’cct ified, thit ii ipcntJ. wcu1d cii1aic: yc,w CVPITC

lii rpns u an embezIeient chcie that dicc:erc-d L J’.: 20 L the Dtrit
ntroccd for anI obthcd an oxtrnivc foiinic audit by C.. U. Uh1bcgfoctbp&iod
February 2009 thiug Iue 2QL 1. In additioa to the a’idk C (I lhlenberg rebuIt the
Jistric:s±azcia1 rccordsftr the Fisca) YeuJiy O?C thriu&h June 2011 and
rcomrnenthxi -evai i1exiuiI fiunia1 criI Lveiit.

In a4diton., the San Mao iuflty Cciui1’s OtCC perfcmied an iivestiator or Lht
pstion of DLtriot Miger’ incii oicribt thmj the pecrJ th fraw ws
perpetrated and cirrndd• poroz-ri mice mcaurvs t’r the Diuie Mar er.

.E-sd tipon C. . ih1LnbcWs audit. ir wacd that th mbzzInint c.heirw
tornplex fra’id tb “m’ch?dd IbGri effort fti cor rip the etbt!eneni isçfalsified Fecc’rcLprescnkd hc D!s.ct iIir,!1acr md ih &xzrd oJJn;s:e.g.

hi ddio, it wa assessed that the rnpfrczcy brwen the aJkgdç rrzic w
acLraIca q?Pd well t#cctz!ed th# l rIs Iccr ut rittctd hi ih DistrftE .c zud rnd#pPQC5SCS.

PAGE 28



IL øi

sM4Vsytci

Fimthgs sd Rt,nudds

Ficdhig No1

Thc bInkck tc&’hfle mntá h that ii kckd ha w is

b kept in o Ioc&d thawer.

SeUkbk sod ü a loGkd cbw r sd Uñk hediatIy 1thg thc bzk

cIci* sok hoi4 1wb toá.

11w bIsk ciwc. *tnck L5 not ubjct to paiok inory caunt to srure thc tifru ppy

prtpry acountt foitwkd.

C4rvtiy th rtk L tnug1i fnr ser1 woth ofdek ril1ng Thftprcsn

appa1wiity for idividn with ccsiblwk chcck itockteiI ak cc1c that woild

rotbd tftir il for months

mtti No1

Thta DL*t Msar ,.kg with th Fmci Mnger shoM pñodcaUy 1weLoiy the blark

thck stock and docimc,it hdront ftat fr rord.

3

Th FanJ aisr nd th Acoimtimg Te uilcia cain Li,dividualiy ccss blank dck

stock ti thsnofthe orbr.

This pvo1e an oppoitiy fa one to steal Nsk check stack in the abecce otthe other

Iherby ad CetEáO& in th evct eif tbeit cfthl st>ck and the sseqen frderit un

thi sIgton inaees the dIffky tMeinte ft dstcr nd potentisi1y teithea nfl

indiduah who would be ttess to thNadk chock stodL

Umit aces to the IOCk4 b[ik check torc3r to the Manager or nø more tba hn and the

Fiaucü iger

PAGE 29



M Ibet Gy
R Anir4S4MV 1J?tvaPcI R d1tiDn fo*

N $

Thotthsh 1ixvLtD the mt Di3It cbck n be cahd fwith the nk,

ft drto sttal bks untoiooy b an theft nd

Immediately flee thety efectivey thwatfrg the tmsIv inie1 oti1s bbbd to

e th

nnrniicIatbu No 4

nppr thrioJd th th bktbin aey ebeebvtbtdcmtion or

4vitited cle&ae.

Findig No S

Wbthebk 5ttemeti zicIIed aiouth1y thb eoatr1 typIcafl tep1ae five to sx

weeks after the &t ef the fentir mcintk tbeel,y potty friwister thea igeva1 to

bctecI wiproead.

nnendaticu N S

The Virandal Mieef hou1d r1ew he oebkiug titeuettt wee1dy a an addi4

precuor.

Findbg Ne 6

Theie doca tio eppearto au upper Umi to the ctedit eac Ifziirate this situatior

ihe poinnte1 & a Irg the1 or ms

Rwmnf*& No.6

!krvw the threthkf of the rdiL cerd ind seak ø limii iL upper limit tfI withh rn of

the ty*a b-1saelioeL

PAGE 30



MND Sym ao atiaefo

ntpttice is tE issue erndft itd øotSLSLI This 1on c the pcteiiI

Gfnil5me c fi.ud

7

E!ikaI the c&st1wtnrs.hi5itie nd tusinc benefh ufthe isvntt of edit #d and

ecnsider mlth their i&utic. th buthtess justit thc wd ssute otthem the

iue €tp Uxit tmd tizJy ecodilietio hec,oee wen reore p#ttut.

FdizgN S

TheDiidnw JmeA Ccrd Maewd wh[t &iintri ti11 rernm work Le

it is *r have dcAi1ed depeedures nd ciar ed ntjljce readily

to mMagueet and stafL Well w7itten snd current pcIkxd jr cedwxs serve

4ssi4qthy auTnie and cheek and bknlo&tI OOIUtOI ry rganZMLDL Thy
ihe bi!kty of nanagenwnt well s the ewrn1 sudtor it

m-*thgM ieview eM eoi±torng of the dq4othy bsües3 titu.

Rtmmendttie No S

CorLthier tracdrt with &m that peizIize in th pr üoD pollcis and
tLmely thowu and uerhewr Aind1y xnnciai.

Wq mLTy yrur,

Dr. PeteT Hughc. fied Freed Exeiecr

PAGE 31



ABOUT OR4NGE coLWrrs
Director oflnter,wI Audit

Dr. Peter Hughes. CPA

Or. Huqe Ia a of tho sacte UCLA Ardararn Grathiat Schod
Corpt 8aard t rs Oarsjht Prgarn wfoh qIWes hrn to

a board rnbr on {oth a rprata or overnmardet antity He atsa possesas a
PhD lr’zrn Qrøan Stata U keraity, an MA Y41f1 n CrYoss tstc Irom the Unrs?
of C&tornL, Rwerkfo and a A In Phibaopby q [thjc arid Poll1aaI Pt osoiy from Panono

ir Cwemoit, Caforni, Mdltfona{Iy, ho Is o Cosiflod Rhl1c Ac Ountan. Cor{Iflod
Gnporato ComplIsnoo rrn’d EUiks PssionaL an AICPA Gerted mo ori Too noioy
PcsIonaL CertifIed tnernei /w1ltor. a Certflled Firiencial Ft nslc expert. an Institute of
Intern& AudiLom A editad P0041 Ravleer. a Cored Fraud Examiner antI is tmreded in Leteraf
and Cnstiv Thinkina riqio arrd mothoda.

Ak,n with his Carnt internal auditing expadenee Dr. Hu1e has aerve$ as tM Drietnr of
Intern Audit for three ddass o nifmss thetuding the Celdornis institute of Ttnobjy
Caftaeh. NASAa iet Proptrlsion Laheratory (kPL3 end the Oroon U Nemsiy niinm of Highor
Educeton, Aedftbnally. Dr. Hughes sewad as Mtln Controller fr Crnltech arid was a

Oêector of General Accounting and Finance for a major stibskliory of Columbia
Brodeashng ysteni C8S,

Or. Hughes Is c oilzed as a teacflng authority hr lmprMrt the cost effectiveness and
effklencias of luonl gnwernmentat entities having deslrrod arid ceriducted over WI) Control
Self Assesemerd anti PIOQOSS lmprrwemtmt wedishops hwoMug 150G parttolpotkxrs that
identified acid iffiplemnatad over 200fJ rnprcvemonts in County business processes Cr,
Hughes’ use of Lateral end Crerrtha Thir*n’rg fee In iaticn with tile birress
s’nse and harnor made these woi-kakrps the most popular end altectivo in recant County
histoiy

He also Fed Iri the eeicjn and Implement of Siratogic Business Plans baying erveci s The co
lead for The first Strategic Plan for Orange County, In edditio, he is also recognized as a
leading authertly In the developrrnnit of riveetmerit lluIdcrlas for municipal and county
investment pools having conducted over 50 conpllanco and financial audits c1 Orange County’s
57 billion lrwestmarn pool anti in the iesign of ‘Best Practlee Audit Oversight Cvmmrttees
IAOC) having been instrunientin Is tio creation of Oraimge Ceuntys AOC wbkdi is OnidemotI as
CJflS of the most suc’oasaM Overslcht coni mittees of it )th’id kt 10001 govanirn ant

Under The direction of Dr. Hughes, the County of Orange Internal Audit Department was the
recipient of the prestigious Inebtute of Internal Auditors ROD, rne Recognition at’ Commitment to
Professional etel[nce, Quality Scoiee and Outreach Award. In addition, hIs department web

received the ecne Medal fer is utility an transparency from the international Association
of Local Governmental Auditors (ALGA). Or. Hughes has fed his Iritemoal audit denarirnent
success lulF throuch four Peer Reviews arid has devclopd 11w department into a wtid class
Sudit funciiun with each of hIs 15 auditors p sassIng a CPA arid at toast erie other
ineriatienalty recognized certification; a s1anard cit excellence no other comparal,Iy sized
coesty or oily has achieved.

Dr Hughes Is a noted speaker at tcniaitonnl conforancos arid Is sri Adjunct P feseer of
Acocwthrig at California State University at Fullerton’s renowned arid aecroditod School of
A0004Jritnig where he teaches an advance course in Internal controls, audit and risk
asessmarit.

Issued: July 18, 2013

PAGE 32



  

 

 

 

 

Office of Mayor Peter I. Ohtaki 

 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA  94025 | Phone: (650) 330-6600 | Fax: (650) 328-7935 

October 2, 2013 

 

 

Hon. Richard C. Livermore 

Judge of the Superior Court 

c/o Charlene Kresevich 

Hall of Justice 

400 County Center, 2 Fl 

Redwood City, CA 94063-1655 

 

Re: Response to Grand Jury Report: “San Mateo County Special Districts: Who is Really in Charge of 

the Taxpayer’s Money? The Mosquito Embezzlement: Is it the Tip of the Iceberg?” 

 

Dear Judge Livermore: 

 

As requested, the City of Menlo Park is providing responses to each of the fourteen findings presented 

by the Grand Jury in their report entitled, “San Mateo County Special Districts: Who is Really in Charge 

of the Taxpayer’s Money? The Mosquito Embezzlement: Is it the Tip of the Iceberg?” as well as the two 

recommendations pertaining to City/Town Councils. 

 

FINDINGS: 

 

F1. The Board and the Manager share responsibility for the lack of oversight that was 

instrumental in allowing embezzlement to occur. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F2. The Manager and the Board’s finance committee did not recognize red flags in the financial 

reports that could have revealed the embezzlement far sooner. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F3. The insurance company’s denial of the District’s embezzlement loss claim reinforces the 

conclusion that there were inadequate management practices, insufficient accountability, and 

inadequate oversight of the District. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

ATTACHMENT B

PAGE 33



F4. The District's Manager did not follow policies and procedures in the hiring of one of the 

employees subsequently charged with embezzlement. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F5. The District did not have adequate internal financial controls in place to prevent the 

embezzlement or lead to its early discovery. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F6. Trustees and senior District staff should receive monthly financial reports. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F7. The Board in general and its finance committee in particular did an inadequate job of 

overseeing the District’s operations. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F8. The Board’s evaluation of the Manager revealed significant differences in the levels of 

confidence in the Manager’s ability to manage the District. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F9. The District would benefit from a redesigned Manager Evaluation process. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F10. Trustees are confused about their responsibilities, some feeling their only role is to make 

district policy, while others feel they have more oversight responsibility. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F11. Even though LAFCo Commissioners rejected the recommendation to dissolve the District 

and transfer its functions to the CEHD, this issue needs further evaluation. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this finding based on the information 

provided by the Grand Jury in its report and based upon LAFCo’s response to the Grand Jury 

which calls for more analysis. 

 

PAGE 34



F12. Cost savings could possibly be achieved with a transfer of the District’s functions to the 

CEHD. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park does not have enough information to agree or disagree 

with this finding based solely upon the information provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F13. LAFCo would benefit from additional resources to ensure Service Reviews, as mandated by 

state law, are performed in a timely fashion. 

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park does not have enough information to agree or disagree 

with this finding based solely upon the information provided by the Grand Jury in its report. 

 

F14. Not all cities appoint a representative to the Board in a timely fashion or select a qualified 

individual as stipulated in the Health Code. 

 

City Response: The City does not have enough information about the practices of other cities as 

it pertains to this finding to agree or disagree, based on the information provided by the Grand 

Jury in its report. The City of Menlo Park has appointed a qualified resident to serve as its 

representative.   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

R10. Appoint a council member to the District Board if a representative cannot be found after 

vetting applicants.  

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this recommendation and will implement it 

if it becomes necessary. 

 

R11. Require regular reporting about the District’s operations by their representative at a 

scheduled council meeting.  

 

City Response: The City of Menlo Park agrees with this recommendation and has tentatively 

scheduled the City’s representative to the District Board to make a presentation at a future 

Council meeting in November 2013.  The City Council has also requested quarterly updates from 

its representative. 

 

This letter of response to the Grand Jury report was reviewed and approved by the City Council at its 

regular meeting on Tuesday, October 1, 2013.  Any questions about this response should be directed to 

Menlo Park City Manager, Alex McIntyre, at (650) 330-6610. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Peter I. Ohtaki 

Mayor 

 

cc: Menlo Park City Council 

PAGE 35



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 36



 

 

  CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING  

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, September 24, 2013 
6:00 P.M. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

 
6:00 P.M. CLOSED SESSION  
 
Mayor Ohtaki called the Closed Session to order at 6:00 p.m. with all members present. 
 
Public Comment: 
Nawied Amin spoke on the topic. (Handout) 
 
CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section §54957:  
 Public Employee Performance Evaluation - City Manager  
 
The Council adjourned to the Regular Session in the Council Chambers. 
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION  
 
Mayor Ohtaki called the meeting at order at 7:11 p.m. with all members present.  
 
Mayor Ohtaki led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
There is no reportable action from the Closed Session held earlier.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Mayor Ohtaki announced that Item SS1, Overview of the process for creating the work program 
for the General Plan, will not be heard this evening and is continued to a future Council meeting 
to be determined. Due to two very recent resignations in the Planning Division, adjustments in 
the General Plan timeline will need to be considered before this item can be presented. 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS 

 
B1. Library Commission quarterly report on the status of their two-year Work Plan 
Jacqueline Cebrian, Commission Chair, gave the report.  
 
B2. Bike Commission quarterly report on the status of their two-year Work Plan 
Greg Klingsporn, Commission Chair, gave the report. 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1  
 Charlie Golden announced an event, The Lighter Side of Brass, benefiting the Mid-

Peninsula High School Performing Arts Center taking place on October 12th at 3pm at the 
First Congregational Church in Palo Alto.  

AGENDA ITEM D-2

PAGE 37

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/09/26/file_attachments/241205/Public%2BComment%2B-%2BNawied%2BAmin%2B-%2BClosed%2Bsession%2BCity%2BManager%2BEvaluation__241205.pdf


September 24, 2013 
Minutes Page 2 

  

 Dr. Gloria Hernandez, Ravenswood City School District Superintendent, spoke regarding 
the Community School Project and invited Council to attend press conferences being held 
on October 8th at Belle Haven and Willow Oaks schools. 

 Cherie Zaslowsky expressed concerns regarding the General Plan. 
 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
D1.  Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work performed by C.F. Archibald 

Paving Inc. for the 2011-12 Street Resurfacing Project (Staff report #13-154) 
       
D2. Authorize the City Manager to execute agreements with the Peninsula Corridor Joint 

Powers Board for the operations and funding of the City’s Shuttle Program for fiscal year 
2013-2014 (Staff Report #13-155) 

 
D3. Reject the Bids Received for the El Camino Real Trees Phase lll Project  
 (Staff report #13-156) 
 
D4. Accept, file and direct staff to submit a Comment Letter for the Draft US 101/Willow 

Interchange Project Draft Environmental Document (Staff report #13-156) 
 
D5. Accept minutes for the Council meetings of August 20 and August 27, 2013 (Attachment) 
 
Councilmember Keith requested that Item D5, the August 20, 2013 minutes only, be pulled from 
the Consent Calendar for discussion. 
 
ACTION: Motion/second (Keith/ Carlton) to approve Consent Calendar items D1-D4 and D5, 
the August 27, 2013 minutes only, passes unanimously.  
 
On page 5, paragraph 4 of the August 20th minutes, Councilmember Keith requested that the 
words “and was provided a copy” be added to the end of the sentence “Councilmember Keith 
requested to see the indemnity agreement”. 
 
ACTION: Motion/second (Keith/Cline) to approve Consent Calendar item D5, the August 20, 
2013 minutes, as amended passes unanimously. 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
SS.  STUDY SESSION  
 
SS1. Overview of the process for creating the work program for the General Plan  
 (Staff report #13-160)  
This item was continued to a future Council meeting to be determined. 
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Award a contract for the Police Department to purchase equipment: surveillance cameras 

and automated license plate readers (ALPR) (Staff report #13-159)   
Chief Robert Jonsen introduced the item.  Mike Sena, Director of the Northern California 
Regional Intelligence Center (NCRIC) and Brian Rodriguez, responded to Council questions 
regarding the automated license plate reader policy.   

PAGE 38

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239729/D1%2B-%2BAccept%2B2011-12%2BStreet%2BResurfacing__239729.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239744/D2%2B-%2BCCAG%2BJPB%2Bexecute%2BShuttle%2BAgreements__239744.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239812/D3%2B-%2BReject%2BBids%2BEl%2BCamino%2BReal%2BPhase%2BIII__239812.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239812/D3%2B-%2BReject%2BBids%2BEl%2BCamino%2BReal%2BPhase%2BIII__239812.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239755/D5%2B-%2BMinutes%2BAug.%2B20%2Band%2BAug.%2B27__239755.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239811/SS1%2B-%2BGeneral%2BPlan%2BUpdate__239811.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_107/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239808/F1%2B-%2BPolice%2BSurveillance%2BCameras%2Band%2BALPR__239808.pdf


September 24, 2013 
Minutes Page 3 

  

Commander Dave Bertini made a staff presentation regarding purchasing of the fixed 
surveillance cameras and automated license plate readers. 
 
Public Comment: 

 Nawied Amin requested Council delay approving the contract (Handout) 
 Cherie Zaslowsky expressed concerns regarding video surveillance  
 
ACTION: Motion/second (Mueller/Cline) to approve a contract for the Police Department to 
purchase equipment, surveillance cameras and automated license plate readers, with the 
friendly amendment that the equipment only be deployed subject to the following conditions -  
introduction of a privacy ordinance, review and approval of the MOU with NCRIC, review of 
police department draft policies regarding the equipment, implementation of a six month 
retention period for the ALPR data not associated with a criminal investigation, and providing a 
six month update after deployment passes unanimously. 
 
ACTION: Motion/second (Mueller/Carlton) to form a Council subcommittee to work with the City 
Attorney on drafting the privacy ordinance and appointing Mayor Pro Tem Mueller and 
Councilmember Keith to serve on the subcommittee passes unanimously. 
   
F2. Approve a resolution modifying City Council Policy CC-01-0004: 

Commissions/Committees Policy and Procedures and Roles and Responsibilities, 
pertaining to the Housing Commission (Staff report #13-158) 

Staff presentation by Pat Carson, Executive Secretary to the City Manager and Housing 
Commission staff liaison. 
 
ACTION: Motion/second (Cline/Carlton) to approve Resolution 6169 modifying City Council 
Policy CC-01-0004: Commissions/Committees Policy and Procedures and Roles and 
Responsibilities pertaining to the Housing Commission, reducing the number of Housing 
Commissioners from seven to five, passes 4-1 (Mueller dissents). 
 
F3. Discuss and approve scheduling an additional Council meeting in November 2013 to 

review and discuss the Specific Plan (Attachment) 
 
ACTION: Motion/second (Cline/Keith) to schedule an additional Council meeting on November 
19, 2013 passes unanimously. 
 
F4. Letter from Councilmember Kirsten Keith to the San Mateo County Supervisorial District 

Lines Adjustment Committee (Staff report #13-161) 
 
ACTION: Motion/second (Cline/Carlton) for the Council to prepare a letter in support of 
maintaining the City of Menlo Park in one supervisorial district passes unanimously. 
 
F5. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item: None 
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None  
 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None 
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – None  
 

PAGE 39

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/09/25/file_attachments/240909/Public%2BComment%2B-%2BNawied%2BAmin%2B-%2BF4%2BPolice%2Bsurveillance%2Bcamera%2Bpurchase__240909.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239810/F2%2B-%2BHousing%2BCommission__239810.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239794/F3%2B-%2BAdditional%2BCouncil%2BMeeting__239794.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/09/19/file_attachments/239797/F4%2B-%2BDistrict%2BLines%2BAdjustment%2BLetter__239797.pdf


September 24, 2013 
Minutes Page 4 

  

J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
Mayor Ohtaki, and Councilmembers Carlton and Keith reported on attending the League of 
California Cities Annual Conference in Sacramento. 
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 

 Wynn Grcich spoke regarding fluoride BPA. (Handout) 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT at 10:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
Pamela Aguilar 
Acting City Clerk 

PAGE 40

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/09/25/file_attachments/240910/Public%2BComment%2B-%2BWynn%2BGrcick%2B-%2BFluoride__240910.pdf


 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-163 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-1 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Approve the Request for Proposal for the El 

Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration and 
Ravenswood Avenue Right Turn Lane Study  

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Request for Proposal (RFP) for the 
El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration and Ravenswood Avenue Right Turn Lane Study.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration Study was approved as a project priority by 
Council and is included in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2013-2014. A related project, the El Camino Real/Ravenswood Avenue 
Northbound Right-Turn Lane Design, is also included in the City’s CIP for FY 2013-2014 
and therefore these two projects have been combined into one study/preliminary 
design.  
 
The first step is to secure a consultant team to conduct the  
Study/Preliminary design. An RFP process is used, so potential consultants can provide 
informed proposals and staff can ensure a qualified team is selected.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 

The study/preliminary design will consider possible widening alternatives to allow for the 
addition of a bicycle lane or an additional through lane, for a total of three lanes in each 
direction between Sand Hill Road and Encinal Avenue. The purpose of this study is to 
identify potential reconfiguration alternatives, and evaluate the feasibility and potential 
impacts (adverse and beneficial) to improve multi-modal transportation along the 
corridor. Impacts to traffic, active transportation, safety, parking and aesthetics will be 
addressed as part of the evaluation. In summary, within the limited right-of-way 
available, this study will assess safety, efficiency and convenience trade-offs between 
motorists and bicyclists. The project will include an extensive community engagement 
component, including community workshops, web-based outreach, meetings with the 
Bicycle, Transportation and Planning Commissions and the City Council. Meetings with 
the Town of Atherton and City of Palo Alto Committee(s) and Commission(s) are also 
included.  

AGENDA ITEM F-1

PAGE 41



Staff Report #: 13-163  

Given the location of the El Camino Real/Ravenswood Avenue Northbound Right-Turn 
Lane Design project within the overall study corridor, the planning and design of this 
project was included as part of the El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration Study. This 
will allow for the projects to be coordinated and, ultimately, the design of the El Camino 
Real/Ravenswood Avenue Northbound Right-Turn Lane to be compatible with the 
overall improvement plans for the El Camino Real corridor.  
 
Staff worked with the two El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration Study Subcommittees, 
one of the Bicycle Commission and one of the Transportation Commission, to develop 
the attached RFP. The RFP was also approved by the Bicycle and Transportation 
Commissions at their September 9, 2013 and September 11, 2013 meetings, 
respectively.  
 
The RFP defines the project history, problem statement, project objectives, and givens 
(a list of conditions serving as a framework for stakeholders of the project that are not 
open for negotiation), as well as the core Scope of Work, Project Schedule, required 
proposal content and selection process details. 
 
The key tasks included in the Scope of Work are as follows: 

1. Project Management 
2. Community Outreach 
3. Data Collection and Review 
4. Identify Performance Metrics 
5. Existing Conditions 
6. Develop Travel Demand Forecasts 
7. 2030 No Project Analysis 
8. Alternatives Analysis 
9. El Camino Real/Ravenswood Avenue-Menlo Avenue Northbound Right-Turn 

Lane Improvement Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E) 
10. Environmental Review 

 
If approved, the RFP will be sent to consultants in mid-October to solicit proposals. 
Interviews of the consultants will include the Bicycle and Transportation Commission 
sub-committees and would most likely be held in late November/early December with 
Council award of the contract to the consultant in early January 2014.  
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

Funding for the El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration Study and Ravenswood 
Avenue/El Camino Real Northbound Right-Turn Lane Designs are included in the FY 
2013-2014 CIP Budget. The amounts budgeted for these studies are $200,000 and 
$50,000, respectively, for the current fiscal year inclusive of consultant and staff time.  
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommendation does not represent a change to existing City policy.  
 

PAGE 42



Staff Report #: 13-163  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration Study is not a project under the current 
California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. Modifications that are recommended 
as part of this study would require environmental review following the completion of the 
Study.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Draft Request for Proposal (RFP) for El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration 
and Ravenswood Right Turn Lane Study  

 
Report prepared by: 
Nicole H. Nagaya, P.E. 
Senior Transportation Engineer 
 
Jesse Quirion 
Transportation Manager 
 
 
 

PAGE 43



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft Request for Proposal (RFP) 
for 

El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration 
and Ravenswood Right Turn Lane 

Study 
 

Issued: October 16, 2013 
 

Proposals Due:  November 6, 2013 
 

 

Background  

Project History  

El Camino Real is a key roadway connecting cities throughout San Francisco, San Mateo, and 
Santa Clara Counties, and provides a key transportation route through downtown Menlo Park. 
El Camino Real serves many local businesses fronting and adjacent to the street, and is one of 
few north-south thoroughfares in the City, providing connections for residents to jobs and 
services in Palo Alto, Mountain View, Los Altos, Atherton, Redwood City, and beyond.  

El Camino Real also divides the City, with the downtown business district on the west side and 
the Civic Center, recreation facilities and library on the east side, and the Menlo Park City 
School District schools straddling both sides. This orientation requires frequent crossings by 
Menlo Park residents on a daily basis, and represents a challenging situation for pedestrians, 
bicyclists, and motorists making short trips to local destinations.  

El Camino Real is designated State Route 82 and is owned by Caltrans within Menlo Park city 
limits (San Francisquito Creek to Encinal Avenue); however, the City of Menlo Park operates 
and maintains the traffic signals within the City. El Camino Real also serves numerous 
SamTrans, VTA and local shuttle transit services, and is one block west of the Caltrain corridor, 
with the Menlo Park station located near the intersection with Santa Cruz Avenue.  

Today, El Camino in Menlo Park is six lanes wide from the southerly border with the City of Palo 
Alto, before narrowing to four lanes north of Ravenswood Avenue. The four lane section 
continues north to Spruce Avenue in the Town of Atherton. In the southbound direction, the four 
lane section begins at Valparaiso Avenue-Glenwood Avenue and continues south to 
Ravenswood Avenue, where it widens to a six-lane cross-section. El Camino Real is six lanes 
through the adjacent communities of Atherton, Palo Alto, Mountain View and Los Altos; it is 
four- to six-lanes in Redwood City.  

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 45



 
 

 
 

The El Camino Real corridor and Downtown Menlo Park were recently re-envisioned through 
the City’s El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan (Specific Plan), adopted by the Menlo Park 
City Council in June 2012. The Specific Plan provides the framework for redevelopment of many 
underutilized parcels in the Plan Area, and encourages transit-oriented, mixed-use and infill 
development. While maintaining the existing cross-section was assumed throughout the 
process, improvements to several intersections on El Camino Real and a comprehensive 
bicycle network were identified as part of the Specific Plan. Specifically, the Environmental 
Impact Report for the Specific Plan and other prior development projects identified the need for 
widening the northbound approach from El Camino Real to Ravenswood Avenue to add a right-
turn lane, with conversion of the existing right-turn lane to a through lane. This modification is 
currently included in the City’s Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan.1 Since this improvement 
lies within the study area for this project, it will be evaluated and design developed as part of 
this study. The City’s Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) Program also includes modifications at 
the El Camino Real intersections at Middle Avenue and Valparaiso Avenue-Glenwood Avenue 
that will be reviewed as part of this study, although preparation of full design plans for these 
improvements are not anticipated as part of this project.  

As the Specific Plan Area has begun to redevelop, the community, the Bicycle, Transportation 
and Planning Commissions, and City Council have raised concerns about the functionality of El 
Camino Real to serve multi-modal transportation users safely and efficiently. Key issues raised 
have included: 

 Occurrence of congested conditions and delay to motorists, transit vehicles, and 
emergency vehicles during peak commute hours; 

 Ability to serve local traffic and connect local businesses, including provision of on-
street parking; 

 Safety of motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians traveling along and across El Camino 
Real;  

 Presents a barrier to vehicle, bicycle, and pedestrian traffic attempting to cross El 
Camino Real;  

 Prevalence of motorists making u-turns at Cambridge Avenue 
 Comfort of bicyclists traveling on El Camino Real, and bicyclists’ need to access local 

destinations in the corridor; and 
 Designation of El Camino Real as a Class II bike lane/minimum Class III bike route 

facility in the Specific Plan.  

Problem Statement 

El Camino Real as it currently exists does not adequately serve the Menlo Park community’s 

need for safe and efficient multi-modal transportation and access to local destinations.  

                                                
1 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan, FY 2013-18. Available: 
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_191/2013/05/15/file_attach
ments/211148/5YR%2BCIP%2B13-18%2B-%2BFinal%2B05.13__211148.pdf  

PAGE 46

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_191/2013/05/15/file_attachments/211148/5YR%2BCIP%2B13-18%2B-%2BFinal%2B05.13__211148.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_191/2013/05/15/file_attachments/211148/5YR%2BCIP%2B13-18%2B-%2BFinal%2B05.13__211148.pdf


 
 

 
 

Project Objectives 

Based on these issues, the City is embarking on a study to review potential transportation and 
safety improvements to El Camino Real. This study will consider possible widening alternatives 
to allow for the addition of a bicycle lane or an additional through lane, for a total of three lanes 
in each direction between Sand Hill Road and Encinal Avenue. The purpose of this study is to 
identify potential reconfiguration alternatives, and evaluate the feasibility and potential impacts 
(adverse and beneficial) of up to three (3) of these alternatives to improve multi-modal 
transportation along the corridor. Impacts to traffic, active transportation, safety, parking and 
aesthetics will be addressed as part of the evaluation. In summary, within the limited right-of-
way available, this study will assess safety, efficiency and convenience trade-offs between 
motorists and bicyclists.  

Givens 

Serving as a framework for the stakeholders of this project are a list of conditions that are not 
open for negotiation:  

 Infrastructure and streetscape modifications to El Camino Real between Sand Hill Road 
and Encinal Avenue will be evaluated as part of this study and, as necessary for 
connectivity, side-street approaches to El Camino Real within this area. Modifications to 
side-streets will be considered between the western side of the Caltrain tracks and the 
eastern side of Curtis Street-Hoover Street-Alto Lane.  

 All proposed modifications should be consistent with the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan. 

 Only surface improvements will be considered (i.e., grade separation, such as 
tunneling, is prohibitively expensive for purposes of this study).  

 Impacts (both beneficial and possibly adverse) to all modes of travel will be considered 
in this study.   

 It is expected that Caltrans will continue ownership of El Camino Real in the reasonably 
forseeable future; thus, ultimate design and implementation of modifications to El 
Camino Real will need to meet Caltrans requirements and standards. Caltrans 
representatives will be invited to participate as interested stakeholders as part of this 
process.  

Scope of Work 

The following is the project outline on a task-by-task basis that is intended to set the general 
framework for the study.   

Task 1 – Project Management 

Consultant will conduct a kick-off meeting with City staff to finalize the scope of work and 
schedule, and discuss issues such as the project goals, opportunities and constraints, 
information needs, roles and responsibilities, and expectations.  Consultant should also 
describe their approach for ongoing project management approach over duration of this study.  

Deliverables: 

PAGE 47



 
 

 
 

 Kick-off Meeting Agenda and Minutes 
 Final Scope of Work and Schedule 

Task 2 – Community Outreach  

Consultant will develop a draft and final web-based overview survey to gain input from Menlo 
Park residents on their overall and specific concerns regarding circulation and safety within the 
study corridor. The survey will also include a link to the City’s website, so residents can sign up 

to receive updates on the project and notification of future meetings. The consultant will tally the 
results of the survey to use during the project. 

Consultant will prepare materials for and attend the following meetings: 

 Up to six staff-level meetings 
 Up to three Community Workshops 
 Up to four adjacent community public hearings (such as Town of Atherton 

Transportation Committee, City of Palo Alto Planning and Transportation Commission 
and/or Bicycle Advisory Committee) 

 Up to five Menlo Park Commission presentations (two Bicycle, two Transportation, and 
one Planning) 

 Up to two Menlo Park City Council presentations  
 Meeting with Caltrans to Review Report/Findings 
 

It is anticipated the content reviewed at the meetings would include at least the following: 
 
 Community Workshop #1: Visioning and Performance Metrics 

 Community Workshop #2: Existing Conditions and Alternatives Development 
 Bicycle Commission Meeting #1: Existing Conditions and Alternatives Development 
 Transportation Commission Meeting #1: Existing Conditions and Alternatives 

Development 
 City Council Meeting #1: Existing Conditions and Alternatives Development 

 Community Workshop #3: Draft Report 
 Bicycle Commission Meeting #2: Draft Report 
 Transportation Commission Meeting #2: Draft Report 
 City Council Meeting #2: Draft Report 
 

Alternatively, the consultant may propose an alternative approach to community outreach 
meetings based on prior project experiences, as desired.  

 
Additionally, the following tasks will require regular updates from the consultant: 

 
  Project Web Site and Facebook page: Develop project web site and Facebook page to 

provide all relevant information about the project, including: staff reports, presentations, 
meeting materials, project schedule, and related documents. The consultant will provide 
the information and the City will upload the information and maintain the website. 

PAGE 48



 
 

 
 

 Newsletter: The consultant will develop a regular electronic newsletter to inform the 
community of the progress of the project. Email distribution will be handled directly by 
the City.  

 
Deliverables: 

 Draft and final survey for distribution by City staff 
 Summary of survey results 
 Agendas and minutes for staff-level meetings 
 Agendas, presentations, notes from each Community Workshop 
 Presentations for each Commission and Council meeting 
 Materials for web site 
 Monthly newsletters 

Task 3 – Data Collection and Review  

Consultant will review all relevant previous studies, including relevant historical traffic counts 
and other data, as summarized below, and identify locations and collect new traffic counts as 
needed:  

 Review background studies and plans: 
o El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 
o General Plan 
o Comprehensive Bicycle Development PlanGrand Boulevard Initiative  
o Transportation Impact Fee Final Report 

 Confirm existing right-of-way and inventory existing curb widths and lane striping for 
each block 

 Full survey of southeast corner of El Camino Real and Ravenswood Avenue (for use in 
Task 9)  

 Compile previously collected traffic counts, and collect new data, as needed: 
o Intersection turning movement counts during peak periods (vehicles, heavy 

vehicles, buses, bicycles, pedestrians) 
o Average daily traffic vehicle classification counts  

 Conduct travel time runs 
 Inventory parking spaces by block face 
 Inventory curb ramp and crosswalk locations, median islands 
 Most recent 5-year collision data (vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians) 
 Bus routes and service frequency, stops, and ridership 
 Conduct field observations, including intersection operations and queuing during each 

peak period; behavioral observations; and walking and bicycling the corridor 
 Prepare summary of El Camino Real best practices, highlighting other Bay Area 

communities that have incorporated such practices along similar roadways 
 

Deliverables: 
 Data Request  

PAGE 49



 
 

 
 

 Cross-section and plan view of study area showing right-of-way, curb widths and lane 
striping 

 Summary memo with findings from Task 3 
 Relevant GIS layers developed by the consultant in ArcGIS format 
 Summary of El Camino Real best practices, including photos and built examples 

Task 4 – Identify Performance Metrics 

Consultant will identify a draft list of performance metrics to be used to evaluate alternatives. 
The draft list should be reviewed with City staff and presented at the first Community Workshop. 
This list should include, at a minimum, for each mode, as follows:  

 Vehicles: 
o Travel times  
o Queues 
o Intersection levels of service 
o Vehicle miles of travel and greenhouse gas emissions 

 Bicycles: 
o Number of riders on and crossing El Camino Real 
o Evaluate Level of Stress2  or Bicycle Level of Service (2010 Highway Capacity 

Manual) 
o Availability and suitability of parallel routes, such as Alma Street, Laurel Street, 

and Garwood Way 
 Pedestrians: 

o Number of persons on and crossing El Camino Real 
o Assess pedestrian exposure (crossing distance/pedestrian volume vs. vehicle 

turn volumes) 
o Pedestrian delay at each intersection 

 Transit:  
o Ridership 
o Travel time 
o Person delay 

 Parking Impacts (number of spaces lost per block) 
 Other metrics, if desired, to be determined by consultant to address Safety, Health, 

Economic Impact, Impacts to Railroad Crossings, Diversion to Parallel Routes, 
Aesthetics 

 
Deliverables: 

 Draft and Final Performance Metrics - Working Paper #1, including summary of 
feedback received at Community Workshop 

Task 5 – Existing Conditions 

Consultant will complete Existing Conditions analysis to establish baseline performance metrics, 
identify opportunity areas, and project constraints. Given level of congestion and queue 
spillback between the intersections in the study area, a micro-simulation traffic operations model 
should be prepared for both the morning and evening peak periods, calibrated to observed 

                                                
2 Mineta Transportation Institute (May 2012). Low-Stress Bicycling and Network Connectivity. Available: 
http://transweb.sjsu.edu/PDFs/research/1005-low-stress-bicycling-network-connectivity.pdf  

PAGE 50

http://transweb.sjsu.edu/PDFs/research/1005-low-stress-bicycling-network-connectivity.pdf


 
 

 
 

Existing Conditions. The extents of the model area needed should be recommended by the 
consultant.  

Using this calibrated micro-simulation model, the consultant will evaluate performance metrics 
by mode as identified in Task 4.  

Consultant will assess project opportunity areas and constraints, including an assessment of 
key community origins and destinations and likely travel routes for different users, and 
document model calibration process and Existing Conditions in Working Paper #2. Present 
Existing Conditions during second Community Workshop and to Bicycle and Transportation 
Commissions and City Council. 

Deliverables: 
 Existing Conditions Working Paper (electronic copy) 
 Community Workshop #2 materials and minutes 
 Presentations to Bicycle and Transportation Commissions and City Council 

Task 6 – Develop Travel Demand Forecasts 

Using the San Mateo County/C/CAG Travel Demand Model, the consultant will review projected 
growth and develop travel demand forecasts for each analysis scenario. Analysis scenarios 
should include: 

  
 Existing plus Project 
 2040 No Project 
 2040 Plus Project  
 

Forecasts should be reasonably consistent with those published for recent development 
projects, which include traffic assignment for approved and pending projects and one percent 
per year annual growth. Under Existing and 2040 plus Project Conditions, the C/CAG model 
should be used to verify if the addition of a third through travel lane on El Camino Real would 
induce latent demand traffic growth. Consultant should recommend whether a separate set of 
demand forecasts should be used to quantify such latent demand. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Forecast Methods and Results - Working Paper #3 (electronic copy) 

Task 7 – 2040 No Project Analysis 

The consultant will prepare 2040 No Project Conditions analysis. Consultant will evaluate 
performance metrics identified in Task 4 for the 2040 No Project conditions using the calibrated 
micro-simulation models for each peak period.  

Task 8 – Alternatives Analysis 

Based on community input at the first workshop and Existing Conditions analyses, the 
consultant will identify preliminary concepts to improve multi-modal transportation along El 
Camino Real. These concepts may include, for example, infrastructure improvements (such as 
lane additions or striping changes, curb extensions as identified in the Downtown Specific Plan), 
operational improvements (such as signal coordination with the Caltrain crossings), or 

PAGE 51



 
 

 
 

connectivity improvements (such as, consistent with the Specific Plan, extension of 
Ravenswood Avenue bicycle lane from the Caltrain tracks to El Camino Real). The concepts 
should emphasize improvements for the existing public right-of-way, including available curb-to-
curb width and sidewalk areas. While the City is considering possible grade separation of the 
Ravenswood Avenue crossing of the Caltrain tracks, it should not be assumed as part of this 
Study. Additionally, the TIF and prior studies have identified modifications to intersections on El 
Camino Real at Middle Avenue, Menlo Avenue-Ravenswood Avenue, and Valparaiso Avenue-
Glenwood Avenue as follows:  
 

 Middle Avenue:  
o Add a second northbound left-turn lane from El Camino Real to Middle Avenue 

and add receiving lane on Middle Avenue. 
o Add a southbound right-turn lane from El Camino Real to Middle Avenue 

 Menlo Avenue-Ravenswood Avenue:  
o Widen the northbound El Camino Real approach to add a third through lane 
o Widen the southbound El Camino Real approach to add a second left-turn lane 

and restripe the existing right-turn lane to a shared through and right-turn lane 
o Widen eastbound Menlo Avenue approach to provide dedicated left-turn, 

through, and right-turn lanes 
 Valparaiso Avenue-Glenwood Avenue:  

o Restripe the existing right-turn lane on northbound El Camino Real to a shared 
through and right-turn lane and add a third receiving lane 

o Widen the westbound Glenwood Avenue approach to add a dedicated right-turn 
lane 

The feasibility of these modifications within the context of this Study should be evaluated as part 
of this task.  
 
The improvement concepts will be refined to identify the top three (3) alternatives in the second 
community workshop, Bicycle and Transportation Commission meetings and City Council 
meeting. Then up to three (3) alternatives will be carried forward for detailed evaluation as part 
of this task:  

 
 Addition of bicycle facility in both directions on El Camino Real between Sand Hill Road 

and Encinal Avenue 
 Addition of a 3rd through lane in both directions on El Camino Real between Live Oak 

and Encinal Avenue  
 Third alternative, to be determined 

Consultant will evaluate the three (3) alternatives under the following scenarios: 

 Existing plus Project 
 2040 plus Project  
 

Consultant will prepare conceptual (30%) plans, to-scale, using AutoCAD 2010 based on the 
base right-of-way and existing facility inventory information collected and compiled in Task 3 for 
each alternative. Also prepare up to two (2) static photosimulations of each alternative. 

PAGE 52



 
 

 
 

Consultant will develop conceptual cost estimates for each alternative. Consultant will evaluate 
performance metrics identified in Task 4 for each alternative using the calibrated 
microsimulation models for each peak period. An assessment of key community origins and 
destinations and likely travel routes for different users under each scenario should be 
developed. Using the resulting microsimulation models, a video of the simulation for each 
alternative should be prepared for use in Community Outreach and public hearings.  
 
Consultant will prepare draft and final Alternatives Analysis Report, incorporating prior final 
working papers. Results will be presented during Community Workshop #3, and to the Bicycle, 
Transportation and Planning Commissions for review and recommendation to the City Council 
for final approval.  

Deliverables: 
 Concept (30%) plans for each alternative, drawn to-scale in AutoCAD 
 Alternatives Analysis Report (electronic copy) 
 Community Workshop #3 materials and minutes 
 Presentations to Bicycle, Transportation, and Planning Commissions and City Council 

Task 9 – El Camino Real/Ravenswood Avenue-Menlo Avenue Northbound Right-Turn 
Lane Improvement Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E) 

Based on the 30% plans developed for the overall corridor in Task 8, the consultant will develop 
detailed design plans, specifications and cost estimate (PS&E) for the El Camino 
Real/Ravenswood Avenue-Menlo Avenue Northbound Right-Turn Lane improvement. The 
design should be consistent with the Final Alternatives Analysis Report adopted by the City 
Council in Task 8.  
 
The plans and specifications must follow the most recently adopted City of Menlo Park and 
Caltrans standards and shall include all necessary requirements to construct the improvements 
in the public right-of-way, including but not limited to, grading and drainage improvements, utility 
relocations, traffic signal relocations/modifications, tree protection requirements, and signage 
and striping modifications. Consultant will submit copies of the plans, specifications and cost 
estimate at 60%, 90% and 100% complete. The City will review and provide comments to the 
Consultant to incorporate into the documents for each submittal. In addition, the plans and 
specifications will be submitted to Caltrans for an encroachment permit at the 90% submittal. 
The consultant will incorporate Caltrans comments into the 100% submittal. Upon final approval 
of the plans and specifications and Caltrans approval of the encroachment permit, consultant 
will submit signed copies of the plans and specifications to the City for bidding (print and 
electronic copies in AutoCAD and Microsoft Word for plans and specifications, respectively).  
 
The consultant should also prepare a fee proposal to assist the City with construction support 
services, including responding to requests for information (RFIs) and preparing as-built 
construction drawings. 
 
Task 10 – Environmental Review 
 
Based on the alternative recommended in Task 8 as part of this study, some level of 
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) will be required. 
Therefore, all traffic analyses completed as part of Tasks 1 through 8 must be consistent with 
CEQA requirements and guidelines, as it will be used as the foundation for environmental 
review as part of this task.  

PAGE 53



 
 

 
 

 
The consultant will prepare, at a minimum, an Initial Study (IS) for the resulting project. The 
Initial Study shall review the project in relation to the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 
Program EIR, which was certified in June 2012. Based on the IS conclusions, the City will 
determine the appropriate level of environmental review. For purposes of this RFP, the 
consultant should prepare a preliminary scope and cost estimate for the following CEQA 
documents as optional tasks: 

 
 Negative Declaration 
 Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 Environmental Impact Report 

Project Schedule  

It is anticipated that the project will adhere to the following preliminary schedule: 

Request for Proposals (RFP) Issued October 16, 2013 

Questions on RFP Due  October 23, 2013 by 5:00 pm 

Response to Questions Issued October 28, 2013 by 5:00 pm 

Responses to RFP Due November 6, 2013 by 4:00 pm 

Tentative Interview Dates, If Needed Week of November 18 – 22, 2013 

Contract Award January 2014 

Project Completion June 2015 

Proposal Content 

The City is seeking a qualified consultant or consultant team to provide all of the services 
necessary to complete the El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration and Ravenswood Northbound 
Right Turn Lane Study for the City of Menlo Park. The proposal must clearly demonstrate an 
understanding of the City’s goals and objectives for this project. The proposal shall including the 
items outlined in the sub-headings below. Please limit submissions to 30 pages, not including 
cover letter, references, or staff resumes.  

 
1. Cover Letter 

 
The consultant shall provide a letter introducing the firm and summarizing general 
qualifications and an executive summary of the specific approach to completing the study.  
This section should indicate the length of time for which the proposal remains effective 
(minimum of 60 days). 

 
2. Work Program 

 
The consultant shall submit a detailed plan for the services to be provided.  Identify items 
and tasks that City Staff are expected to provide and/or complete. 

 

PAGE 54



 
 

 
 

3. Schedule 
 

The consultant shall include in the proposal a preliminary project schedule that identifies 
milestones and completion dates by task from the beginning through formal review and 
adoption of the Study by the City Council.  Initial project work should commence in January 
2014 and is anticipated to last approximately 18 months. 

 
4. Budget and Fees 

 
The consultant shall provide a fee estimate, on a task-by-task basis including extra meetings 
costs if required.  The proposal shall include a spreadsheet identifying personnel, hourly 
rates, and project responsibilities and estimated amount of time expected for each task, 
expressed in person-hours. The proposed budget is to be presented as not-to-exceed, with 
all overhead/expenses included in the figure.  The consultant should outline the terms of 
payment, based on monthly billings to the City. 

 
5. Public Meetings 

 
The consultant will be required to attend and participate in meetings and/or public 
workshops with committees and policy makers as listed in other sections of the RFP.  An 
hourly rate for additional meetings and presentations should be included in the proposal.  

 
6. Key Personnel 

 
The consultant shall provide the names of key personnel, their respective titles, 
experiences, and periods of services with the firm.  Please clearly identify the primary 
contact for the proposal.  If sub-consultants will be used, include details for these team 
members in this section. 

 
7. Availability 

 
The consultant shall provide a brief statement of the availability of key personnel of the firm 
to undertake the proposed project. 

 
8. Qualifications 

 
The consultant shall provide a list of related projects completed by the firm, along with 
relevant background information (maximum of 10 examples).  For projects that were 
completed by a team of consultants, please clarify the specific contribution of you the firm.  

 
9. References 

 
The consultant shall provide the names and telephone numbers of three (3) persons whom 
the agency can call for references regarding the firm’s past performance, preferably on 
similar projects. 

Selection Process 

Please submit eight (8) double-sided bound copies, (1) unbound, single-sided copy on 
standard-weight paper (no heavy weight paper or tabled dividers), and one (1) CD-R or USB 

PAGE 55



 
 

 
 

drive including a PDF copy of your full proposal at your earliest convenience, but no later than 
November 6, 2013 at 4:00 p.m. to: 

 
Nikki Nagaya, Senior Transportation Engineer  
Transportation Division 
City of Menlo Park 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA  94025 
 

A Selection Advisory Committee comprised of City staff and members of the Bicycle and 
Transportation Commission will review the proposals received and select the most qualified 
firm(s) based on the following criteria: 

 
1. Demonstrated ability to deliver creative options to street design, and to perform the 

specific tasks outlined in the Request for Proposal. 
 
2. Qualifications of the specific individuals who will work on the project. 
 
3. Amount of time key personnel will be involved in the project. 
 
4. The specific method or techniques to be employed by the consultant on the project. 
 
5. Reasonableness of the schedule to complete each task element and complete the 

project. 
 
6.   The overall cost of the proposal. 
 

After the review of the proposals, staff will notify all consultants of their status in writing.  
Interviews of selected consultants by the Selection Advisory Committee will be scheduled 
thereafter, if necessary.  It is anticipated interviews will be held the week of November 18th. Key 
members of each consultant project team should be present for the interview.  A letter will be 
sent to each selected consultant team indicating the format of the interview and discussion 
topics along with the interview time, date and location.  

 
The Selection Advisory Committee will rank the consultants after the interviews. City staff will 
negotiate the scope of work and final terms of agreement with the selected consultant. 
 
The City of Menlo Park reserves the right to reject any of the proposals, to select more than one 
consultant, and/or accept that proposal or portion of a proposal which will, in its opinion, best 
serve the public interest.   
 
Insurance Requirements 

 
The consultant will be required to carry insurance coverage during the performance of the 
contract providing the following minimum limits: 

 
Bodily injury including accidental death $1,000,000 per person 

PAGE 56



 
 

 
 

Property damage and public liability 
(including coverage of vehicles used by the 

Consultant on or off the premises) 

$1,000,000 each person 
$1,000,000 each accident 
$1,000,000 property damage 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance  as required by California statutes 

“Errors and Omissions” (Malpractice) $1,000,000 

 
If you have any questions during the preparation of your proposal, please contact Nikki Nagaya, 
Senior Transportation Engineer at (650) 330-6770 or by email at nhnagaya@menlopark.org. 

 

PAGE 57

mailto:nhnagaya@menlopark.org


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 58



 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-164 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-2 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Consideration of the Formation of a Small 

Business Commission  
 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider Vice Mayor Mueller’s request to create 
a Small Business Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

A number of cities have commissions in order to allow for businesses to provide 
feedback on policy initiatives and approval processes that affect businesses.  The San 
Carlos Economic Development Advisory Commission is one such example.  The San 
Carlos Economic Development Advisory Commission (EDAC) is a nine-member 
advisory commission appointed by the City Council. The commission members include 
representatives of the business community in San Carlos and provide the City Council 
advice and recommendations on the City's economic development programs, goals and 
objectives. The Commission’s goals include maintaining a successful business climate, 
ensuring a diverse job base, and providing an adequate range of housing for residents 
and employees of San Carlos businesses.  
 
The Menlo Park Chamber of Commerce has expressed support for the concept of a 
Small Business Commission.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 

There are a number of impediments for a small business wishing to open in Menlo Park, 
including: the scarcity of space, cost of available space and Menlo Park’s robust public 
approval process.  Depending on lease terms and the scope of a project, the approval 
process can be time that a small business is paying rent and without receiving income.   
 
Recently, staff has had success streamlining approvals with strategies that set separate 
necessary processes on parallel paths to minimize the overall length of processing time.  
However, Menlo Park’s approval process remains to be perceived as more onerous 
than that of our peer cities.  Should the City Council approve Vice Mayor Mueller’s 
recommendations then the Small Business Commission could provide 
recommendations on additional streamlining measures.   

AGENDA ITEM F-2

PAGE 59



Staff Report #: 13-164  

If the Council provides direction to create the Commission, then general direction of the 
make-up of the Commission including residential requirements, number of members, 
and meeting frequency should be provided to staff. Staff would then create a draft 
update to the City's Commission policy and bring it back to Council for approval.  
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The impact on City resources associated with this action will depend on a number of 
factors, such as the scope of the Commission’s work plan, number of commissioners 
and meeting frequency.  Staff is not prepared to make recommendations as to 
additional resources, but may return to the City Council should additional resources be 
necessary.   
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There is no current City policy regarding this issue. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed action does not require environmental review. 
   
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Email from Vice Mayor Mueller regarding the creation of a Small Business 
Commission 

 
Report prepared by: 
Jim Cogan 
Economic Development Manager 
 
 
 

PAGE 60



Cogan, Jim C

From: Mueller, Raymond
Sent: Friday, September 13, 2013 6:20 AM
To: Ohtaki, Peter I; Cogan, Jim C; McIntyre, Alex D; Almanac News 2; Bay Daily Post; Batti, 

Renee (Almanac External)
Subject: Agenda Item Request - Menlo Park Small Business Commission

Dear Mayor Ohtaki and Mr. McIntyre, 
 
I am writing this letter to request that at our next regularly agendized City Council Meeting, an action item be added to 
the City Council's agenda, to consider the creation of a Small Business Commission. 
 
I envision the Small Business Commission would be a standing Menlo Park Commission whose purpose would be the 
following:  
 
1.  To provide feedback to the City and City Council regarding the pressures, challenges, and difficulties that small 
business uniquely face in Menlo Park, and uniquely face is different parts of the City. 
 
2.  To advocate for small business‐friendly improvements to Menlo Park policies and procedures. 
 
3.  To interact with the Menlo Park Economic Development Manager to serve as a resource for new businesses 
starting in, or businesses moving into Menlo Park.  
 
4.  Finally, the Commission would serve to provide analysis to the City Council, regarding policy matters being 
considered by the Council and those policies affect on the small business environment in Menlo Park. 
 
Ideally, the Small Business Commission would include residents who are small business owners in Menlo Park from all 
areas of the City, a representative from the Chamber of Commerce, and any residents with a particular expertise in the 
subject area. 
 
Menlo Park deserves vibrant, revitalized, and supported shopping and dining areas Downtown and throughout the City.  
I believe the Small Business Commission will serve as a valuable resource to serve that purpose.  Our small business 
owners are working hard. Let’s give them another line of support, and increase the communication pathways to our City, 
and the City Council. 
 
Sincerely, 
Ray Mueller 

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 61



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

PAGE 62



 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

 Staff Report #: 13-165 
 

 Agenda Item #: I-1 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEM: November 2013 Council Meeting Schedule 
 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
This is an informational item and does not require Council action. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At its regular meeting on September 24, 2013, the City Council approved scheduling an 
additional Council meeting on Tuesday, November 19, 2013. 
 
Staff has determined that scheduling the Specific Plan item on November 12th will  
provide ample time for proper review and discussion of this topic.  Regular City 
business will therefore be heard and conducted at the November 19th Council meeting.   
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
N/A 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental review is not required. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Updated 2013 Council Meeting Calendar 
 
Report prepared by: 
Pamela Aguilar 
Acting City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM I-1

PAGE 63



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

2013 CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING SCHEDULE

Approved December 11, 2012

January February March

Updated Janauary 3, 2013 - Adding February 4th and March 12th
Updated March 1, 2013 - Changing March 19th to March 26th

Updated September 24, 2013 - Adding November 19th
Updated April 1, 2013 - Adding April 9th 

AB 1234 / BROWN ACT 
TRAINING SPECIAL MEETING

April May June

July August September

October November December

COUNCIL MEETINGS CITY HALL CLOSED CITY HOLIDAYS

STUDY SESSIONS WILL BE 
SCHEDULED AS NEEDED

May 7th at Belle Haven Senior Center

ATTACHMENT A

PAGE 64


	D1 - Grand Jury response - Mosquito Dist
	Att A - Copy of the Grand Jury Report and the Request for Response
	Att B - Draft City of Menlo Park Response Letter to Judge Livermore

	D2 - Minutes for Sept 24, 2013 meeting
	F1 - RFP for El Camino Real Lane Reconfiguration Study
	Att A - Draft RFP for ECR Lane Reconfiguration

	F2 - Formation of a Small Business Commission
	Att A - Email from Vice Mayor Mueller regarding the creation of a Small Business Commission

	I1 - November 2013 Council meeting Schedule
	Att A - Updated Meeting Schedule




